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Dear Sirs,

Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) - Information Furnished Pursuant to
Rule 1203-2(b) Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (File No. 82-35030)
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Enclosed please find a copy of each of the documents, as listed in Annex A attached hereto,
to be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant
to subparagraph (1)(1ii) of Rule 12g3-2(b) (the “Rule”) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Brief descriptions of each document for
which no English language version, translation or summary has been prepared are set forth
in Annex B attached hereto.

In accordance with subparagraphs (4) and (5) of the Rule, the information fumished
herewith is being furnished with the understanding that it shall not be deemed “filed” with
the Commission or otherwise subject to the lhabilities of section 18 of the Exchange Act,
and that neither this letter nor the furnishing of such documents and information pursuant to
the Rule shall constitute an admission for any purpose that the Bank, a joint stock company

incorporated under the laws of the People's Republic of China with limited liability, is
subject to the Exchange Act.

If you have any queries in connection with this matter, please contact our Mr. Zhang
Handong at (8610) 6659 4567 or our Ms. Camela Lee at (852) 2846 2703.

Yours faithfully, PR@@ESSED

For and on behalf of
Bank of China Limited APR 1 62007

.. Ly n
(K. ) v !
Jason C.W. Yeung

Company Secretary

Encl.




Annex A

List of Documents Furnished

Announcement regarding 2006 Estimated Results of the Bank published in newspapers
in Hong Kong on 19 March 2007.

2006 Annual Results of the Bank published in newspapers in Hong Kong on 23 March
2007.

Highlights of 2006 Annual Results of the Bank published in newspapers in Hong Kong
on 23 March 2007.

Overseas regulatory announcement in Hong Kong, dated 23 March 2007, in relation to
(1) Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of Directors of Bank of China
Limited; and (2) Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of Supervisors of
Bank of China Limited.

Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities (Form I) for the month
ended 31 March 2007 filed by the Bank with the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Announcement regarding 2006 Estimated Results of the Bank published in newspapers
in the PRC on 19 March 2007.

Summary of the 2006 Annual Report of the Bank published in newspapers in the PRC
on 23 March 2007.

Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Bank published
in newspapers in the PRC on 23 March 2007.

Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank
published in newspapers in the PRC on 23 March 2007.
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Annex B

Brief Descriptions of Documents for which No English Language
Translation, Version or Summary Has Been Prepared

Announcement in the PRC, dated 14 March 2007, announcing resolutions passed at
the meeting of Board of Supervisors held on 9 March 2007.

Overseas regulatory announcement in Hong Kong, dated 14 March 2007,
announcing resolutions passed at the meeting of Board of Supervisors held on 9
March 2007.
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'mr srock company mcorparan:d m Lﬁs Peaple 5 Repubir.c of . Chma with Iumted habzirry) . '
40 (The. “Bank”)‘ . B
3988)
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. ANNOUNCEMENT
2006 Est;mated Results

PR "~

;o “_Thc Ba.nlc cu.rrently csnmates that its . nct pro 11"for the 'ycar 2006 is cxpectcd to c)\cccd the net
‘.proﬁt for r.he year ’?005 by more, {han 50%.. - B e e

-EEThe fma.ncm] mfom:anon of r.he Ba.n]( for 2006 refsn-ed ‘to 1n this announccmcnt 1s not audlted
. by the auduors of the, BanL -&nd may bc dlffcrcnt from. the audnsd ﬁnanczal 1n10rmat10n

':Poteutlal IIJ*VESIOI'S of the Bank should c).crcxse cautwn when dealmu in the’ shares of Lhe Bank.

n.‘16 March HOO‘I Cthe’ BanL reccwed .a nouﬁcanon 1ssned by the Mm;ar.ry of Fmance and thc .
taie Admuustraﬁon of Taxatmu (Cau Shui [2007] No: 40),,0:1 the dggregite amount 6f salancs 7
aid" by the Bank 16 it§ employees thaz 18 allcrwabie as a deducuble expe éhse for computing the
Bank;,s incomc Lax for 2006. Accordmch the Basik's total mcome tix cxpcnsc is expectcd to- b*
redu‘cd bv approxunatcly .RMZB4 600 rmlhon : ( :

The Ba.nk conductcd an esumate of the Banic & consohdatod financial mformancm for 2006 in

!fo Fmanmal Jnsututmns issued by the Mm:stry of. Fmance of the People”s Republic of China (the -
GAAP ) a.nd the Banik: cu_rrcnrly esm:nates that ‘its met profits undelr both PRC GAAP and’
In[ernauonal Fmancml Reportmo Standards for tHe. year 2006 are cxpccled 6 exceed the
correspondmo m:t pmﬁts for the year 2003 by more than 50%. For reference pufposes, the audited
..‘;.Ilct pmflr. aunbutablc 1o equity ho]dﬂs of thé Bank reported under Inturnatlonal Financial )
| Reponmg “S‘xanda.rds for the year ?.005 Was Rl\/[Bz_D 921 mﬂhon and the ‘net profn under PRC .

GAAP was RMZB?.? 492 mllhon

Thxs an.uounccmem 15 1ssued pursuant 10 Rule. 13.09 of the Rulﬂs Gove:rmnor the L:stmg of
Secunn::s ‘0h The Stock, Exchanue of Hong Konﬂ L1m1tcd

accordancc with ths Accountmg Standaras o1 Busmess Enterpnses and the Accoum.po S)’SI““‘I -

kS

Bel}mg PRC 1§ March 2007

“* Non- a:rcct.'z‘rve dzre*mr—s
# Indep:ndenr non- &If"llh‘.ve directors

i

As-at Lhe date of :h:.s annaunccmen: rhe Directors of thé Bank are: XIAO Gang LI Lzhw ZHANG Jinghuz*, }
Yar*, ZHANG Tinze*,, ‘HONG thua“‘ HUANG Haibo*, Sir Frederick Anderson GOODWIN*, SEAH Lim Huar Peter~, HUA
Qingshen, LI Zaorz..r:g Amhany Franéis NEOH' Witliam Perér COOEE®, Patrick de SAINT- ATGNAN® and Alberto 7 OUN]‘*

By Order of the Board .
Jason C!W. Yeung
Company Secrerary

yuU Ern'u* ZAU
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et ' o DELIVERING GROWTH & EXCELLENCE SEE)
,: . "'l : f| 'i\ :‘;. i -I
73 MAR 7007 s T TR
» Net profit attributable to equ:ty holders of RMB42,830 mllllon | R

a rise of 65.23% compared with 2005, above our projected
net profit of at least RMB33 billion at the time of public Ilstlng

o Earnlngs per share of RMB18 cents, up 28.57%
= Return on average equity at 14.06%, up 192 bps
. Returh on average assets at 0.96%, up 26 bps

» Final dividend per share of RMB4 cents

» |Impaired loan ratio at 4.24%, down 66 bps

* Total assets of RMB5,327,653 million, up 12.40%

» Shareholder’s equity reached RME382,917 million, up 69. 12%
- compared with the end of 2005

» ' Capital adequacy ratio reached 13.59%, up 317 bps against
‘the end of 2005

#|n 2008, Bank of China became the first bank in China to be dual-listed in both
the international and domestic capital markets, further increasing our capital
+ strength and capital adequacy ratio. Cooperation with our strategic investors
is bearing fruit with substantial progfess made in business as well as in
infrastructure areas. At the end of 2006, we acquired Singapore Aircraft
Leasmg Enterprise, a step forward in implementing our strategic plan of
broaderiing our financial services platform. Internaily, we have actively

. advanced our risk management and internal control processes, strived

to accelerate our IT blueprint implementation, and cohtinued to deepen

[ our HR reform. We have aise continued to improve our corparate
3 governance and substantially enhanced the operation of the Board

towards international standards
7 Looking to the coming year, the Bank sees challenges as well as

opportunities a5 China's market economy continues to develop.
Accordingly, we are improving our Corporate governance, as
well as focusing on internal reform, aiming at proactively
adjusting our strategies, adapting to the new business S e
environment and enhancing cur capabilities in innovation
and competitiveness, so as to promote the overall healthy
“and balanced business development of the Bank and
maximize shareholder's value.”

Xiao Gang, Chairman

Bank of China Limited is one of the four largest
commercial banks in China, with the most extensive
international network among commercial banks in the
country. The bank primarily engages in commercial
banking and, through its subsidiaries, provides
investment banking, Insurance and equity investment
services as well. Bank of China Limited aiso owns !
§5.87% of the issued sharé capita/ of BOC Hong Kong 1
(Holdings) Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 2388), which is 1
a leading commercial banking group in Hong Kong.

Pléase visit www.boc.cn for more detalls of the 2006 .
annual results of Bank of China Limited.

23 March 2007 The Standard

Asian Wall Street Journal
Financial Times
International Herald Tribune
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BANK OF CHINA
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED ;" ... ' -

{a joint stock company incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

VTN T

(The “Bank”)
(Stock Code: 3988)

OVERSEAS REGULATORY ANNOUNCEMENT

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC™), the
Bank will publish (1) an “Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of
Directors of Bank of China Limited”; and (2) an ‘“Announcement Regarding
Resolutions of the Board of Supervisors of Bank of China Limited” on 23 March
2007 in newspapers in the PRC. The following is a reproduction of the announcement
for information purpose only.

23 March 2007

As at the dare of this announcement, the Directors of the Bank are: XIAO Gang, LI Lihui, ZHANG
Jinghua*, YU Erniu*, ZHU Yan*, ZHANG Xinze*, HONG Zhihua*, HUANG Haibo*, Sir Frederick
Anderson GOODWIN*, SEAH Lim Huat Peter*, HUA Qingshan, LI Zaohang, Anthony Francis
NEOH*, William Peter COOKE®, Patrick de SAINT-AIGNAN® and Alberto TOGNI".

*  Non-executive directors
Independent non-executive directors




Announcement Regarding Resolutions of
the Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Ltd and all members of Board of Directors warrant that the
information disclosed is authentic, accurate and complete, and contains no false
representations, misleading statements or material omissions.

The notice of the meeting of the Board of Directors of Bank of China Ltd (“Bank of
China” or the “Bank”™) held on Mar 22, 2007 had been sent to all of the Directors
and Supervisors on Mar 8, 2007 by means of paper documents and email and the
meeting was convened on Mar 22, 2007 in Hong Kong. Mr. Li Zaohang attended the
meeting by means of video conference. Number of directors bound to be present is 16
and all of them attended the meeting in person, in compliance with the provisions of
the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the Bank. Non-voting attendees
to the meeting included members of the Board of Supervisors and the Senior
Management. Mr. Xiao Gang, Chairman of the Board, presided over the meeting. The
following resolutions were discussed one by one and adopted by signed paper ballots
by Directors present:

1. Proposal on the 2006 Annual Report of Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

2. Proposal on the Bank of China Limited Profit Distribution Plan for the year 2006
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

It was resolved that the dividends distribution of RMB10,153,566,480.36, at
RMBO0.04 per share (before tax) be and are hereby approved.

3. Proposal on the Annual Budget of Bank of China Limited for the Year 2007
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

4. Proposal on the Appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the External Auditor
of Bank of China Limited for the Year 2007
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

The proposal on the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the external
auditor of the Bank for the year 2007 at the fee of USD20.1 million was
approved.

5. Proposal on the Appointment of Mr. Huang Shizhong as Independent Non-
executive Director of Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0




Huang Shizhong as Independent7N707n;exercutive Director of the Bank as follows:
Agree

Huang Shizhong, 45, currently serves as vice president of Xiamen National
Accounting Institute. Mr. Huang graduated in 1986 from Dalhousie University
with a MBA degree, and reccived his Ph.D degree of Economics (with accounting
focus) in 1993 from Xiamen University. He has served successfully as managing
partner of Pan-China Xiamen CPA firm, deputy dean of the management school
of Xiamen University. Mr. Huang also serves as a member of the Education
Steering Committee of the National Master Program of Professional Accounting,
adviser to the Accounting Standards Committee of the Ministry of Finance,
member of standing committee of the Chinese Accounting Association, member
of the Auditing Standards Committee of the CICPA. He serves as independent
non-executive director in Xiamen International Airport Group Co., Ltd., Xiamen
International Port Co., Ltd. (listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd),
Xiamen C & D Inc., Xiamen Tungsten Co., Ltd.

Proposal on the Appointment of Ms. Huang Danhan as Independent Non-
executive Director of Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 14 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 2

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the appointment of Ms,
Huang Danhan as Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank as follows:
Agree: 2, Against: 0,Abstention: 2 (Lacks banking operation experience)

Huang Danhan, 57, currently serves as Senior Advisor of EU-China Trade Project
in trade in services, a Partner of Sinobridge PRC Lawyers. Ms. Huang graduated
from Robert Schuman University of Strasbourg, France with a State Doctor’s
degree in Law in 1987, being the first PRC scholar who received such degree in
France in the field of social sciences. Since returning to China, Ms. Huang has
served successively as government official in MOFTEC (now Ministry of
Commerce), university professor, private practice lawyer and Chief Legal
Officer for some major Chinese state-owned trading company and financial
institutions, including General Manager of Legal Department, China Construction
Bank (August 1999-March 2001), and General Counsel, China Galaxy Securities
Company Limited (March 2001-September 2004). She also served as a member of
the First Session of the Public Offering Examination and Approval Commission
under the China Securities Regulatory Commission (1993-1995). Starting from
January 2007, she has been serving as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Beijing ZJS Express, Co. Ltd.

Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Anthony Francis Neoh as Independent
Non-executive Director of Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Anthony Francis Neoh did not exercise voting
right on such proposal.




10.

11.

I S S S T T T T T

Mr. Anthony Francis Neoh as Independent Non-exe;lrjitiivé Director of the Bank as
follows: Agree

Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Xiao Gang as Executive Director of Bank
of China Limited
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Xiao Gang did not exercise voting right on such
proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the re-appointment of Mr.
Xiao Gang as Executive Director of the Bank as follows: Agree

Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Li Lihui as Executive Director of Bank of
China Limited
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Li Lihui did not exercise voting right on such
proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the re-appointment of Mr. Li
Lihui as Executive Director of the Bank as follows: Agree

Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Hua Qingshan as Executive Director of
Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Hua Qingshan did not exercise voting right on
such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the re-appointment of Mr.
Hua Qingshan as Executive Director of the Bank as follows: Agree

Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Li Zachang as Executive Director of Bank
of China Limited
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Li Zaohang did not exercise voting right on such
proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the re-appointment of Mr. Li
Zaohang as Executive Director of the Bank as follows: Agree

Please make reference to the resumes of the Directors proposed to be re-
appointed in the 2006 Annual Report of Bank of China Limited.




13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

Boz;rd of Directors of Bank of China Limited (“Management Measures”)
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Chairman Xiao Gang did not exercise voting right on
such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the Management Measures as
follows: Agree

Proposal on the Remunecration Scheme for the Independent Non-executive
Directors of Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 12 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, the four Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Bank did not exercise voting right on such proposal.

Proposal on the Bonus Distribution Scheme for the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Bank of China Limited for the year 2006
Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Due to conflict of interest, Chairman Xiao Gang did not exercise voting right on
such proposal.

independent Non-executive Directors commented on the Bonus Distribution
Scheme for the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Bank as follows: Agree

Proposal on the Amendments to the Articles of Association of Bank of China
Limited
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Proposal on the Amendments to the Bank of China Limited Board of Directors’
Procedural Rules
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Proposal on the Amendments to the Bank of China Limited Procedural Rules for
Shareholders’ Meeting
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

Proposal on the appointment of Mr. Luo Nan as Listing Affairs Representative of
Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0
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University of Toronto). Mr Luo _|01ned Bank of Chma in July 1996, and once
served as an intern in Luoyang Branch, and a staff member of the Overseas
Business Management Department. He started to work in the Office of
Restructuring and Listing of Bank of China from August 2004 and was
appointed to be the senior manager (Investor Relations) of the Board
Secretariat in April 2005 and was appointed to be Division Head (Investor
Relations) of the Board Secretariat in October 2006. Mr. Luo has obtained the
Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary issued by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

Proposals 1 to 17 will be submitted for shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting of 2006. The detailed information of such proposals will be
disclosed on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) and
the website of the Bank (www.boc.cn) when the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting is announced.

In addition, the appointment of Mr. Wai Kin Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the
Bank has been approved by competent regulatory authorities. The Bank hereby
announces the relative resolution approving the proposal to appoint Mr. Wai Kin
Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the Bank as follows:

Proposal to appoint Mr. Wai Kin Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the Bank
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 AbstentionVotes: 0

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the appointment of Mr. Wai
Kin Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the Bank as follows: Agree

Mr. Wai Kin Chim, 46, holds British Citizenship and is a Hong Kong permanent
resident. Prior to joining the Bank, he worked in Standard Chartered Bank, Hong
Kong, Bankers Trust Company, Hong Kong and Deutsche Bank. When working
with Deutsche Bank, Mr. Chim served as the Managing Director and Chief Credit
Officer — Non Japan Asia. Mr. Chim has been working in banking credit and risk
management areas for more than 20 years and possesses ample experiences in risk
management.

The announcement is hereby notified.

Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited

March 23, 2007




Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors of Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Ltd. and all members of Board of Supervisors warrant that the
information disclosed is authentic, accurate and complete, and contains no false
representations, misleading statements or material omissions.

The 2nd meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Bank of China Ltd. (“Bank of
China” or the “Bank”) for the year of 2007 was convened in the 14th floor
conference room of the Bank of China Hong Kong Building on March 22, 2007.
Number of supervisors bound to be present is 5 and all of them attended the meeting
in person. The meeting is legal and valid.

The 2006 annual report of Bank of China and its summary which were approved by
the Board of Directors of the Bank on March 22, 2007, were reviewed and approved
by the meeting of Board of Supervisors. And Bank of China Profit Distribution Plan
for the year 2006 which was approved by the Board of Directors on March 22, 2007,
was reviewed and approved by the meeting of Board of Supervisors. The report of the
Board of Supervisors to be submitted to the Annual General Meeting for
shareholders’ approval was reviewed and approved by the meeting of Board of
Supervisors.

The results of the voting are as follows:

1. The 2006 annual report of Bank of China and its summary:

Votes For: 5 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

2. Bank of China Profit Distribution Plan for the year 2006:
Votes For: 5 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0

3. The report of the Board of Supervisors to be submitted to the Annual General
Meeting:
Votes For: 5 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes: 0
The announcement is hereby notified.

Board of Supervisors of Bank of China Limited

March 23, 2007




MONTHLY SUBMISSION DOWNLOAD PROFILE
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] VETTED UNVETTED

Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Securities (Form |)

Your submission has been approved ! Please record the Submission No. for future reference.

Submission Details

Date/Time submitted [02/04/2007  ]11:33:11 Submitted By [o3988P02
Date/Time Approved [02/04/2007  'J11:33:12 Approved By jo3988PO01
Submission No. [eBIS-070402-00025 Status [approved
Company Code [LM03988 | [Bank of China Limited L

Your Capacity |

Announcement Category  |unvetted Announcement Type  |Monthiy Return1
Contact Person fason c.w. yeung

Contact No. |2846 2700

For the month ended : [31/03/2007

Name of Company fLM03988 JBank of China Limited

Contact Person jpason C.w. Yeung _

Contact Telephone No. [2846 2700 Date [02/04/2007
- submitted :

Section A Section B Section C Section D

A. Information on Types of Listed Equity Securities (please tick wherever applicable, more than one
is acceptable)

[« Ordinary shares [~ Preference shares
[~ Equity Warrants [~ Other Classes of Shares

Section A SectionB SectionC Section D

B. Movement in Authorised Share Capital

1. Ordinary Shares

(1) Stock Code : EEECHN Description : |H shares

No. of Shares Par Value Authorised Share Capital

https://www.esubmission.hkex.com.hk/MonthlyReturn/Form1/Submit.aspx 2007/412



Balance at close of preceding
month
Increase/{Decrease)

{EGM approval date)

v
(dd/mmiyyyy)
Balance at close of the month

|___76,020,251,269]

__i

I

|___.76:020,251,269

[Rme

i 100 [ 76,020,251,269

[RMB

| too ] 76,020,251,269

{2) Stock Code :

Balance at close of preceding
month
Increasef{Decrease)

(EGM approval date)

(ddimmiyyyy)
Balance at close of the month

No. of Shares

| 177,818,910,740!

|__ 177,818,910,740'

Description : |A shares

Par Value Authorised Share Capital

{RMB

| 1.00: | .177,818,910,740

|RmB

1.00, | 177.818,910,740

2. Preference Shares

Stock Code :

Balance at close of preceding
month
Increase/{Decrease)

{EGM approval date)

I L
(dd/mmiyyyy)

Balance at close of the month

No. of Shares

Description : |

Par Value Authorised Share Capital

[HkD |

ko §]

3. Other Classes of Shares

Stock Code :

Balance at close of preceding
month

Increase/(Decrease)

(EGM approval date)

(dd/mm/yyyy)
Balance at close of the month

No. of Shares

—. e e mm— v i

Description:|

Par Value Authorised Share Capital

JHkD _

iI : I
e b [ — - » . - [

Total Authorised Share Capital at the end of the Month I_RL“?@ o I

253,839,162,008

! Section A Section B Section C Section D

2007/412
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L. wiovementin issued share Laplial

No. of ordinary shares No. of other

{1) (2) No. of Preference shares classes of shares
Balance at close of
preceding month | 76.020,251,269 | 177,818,510,740 | |
Increase/(Decrease)
during the month | e | . ‘ | |
Balance at close of the
month [ 76.020,251,269, | 177,818,910,740, | . | .

Section A Section B Section C Section D

D. Details of Movement

Share Options

Total No. of Options Total Total No. of .
at Close of Grant-:jt%urin Exercised Total Cancelled Options Totaatl glgégfo?f;'gns No. Of New Shares
Preceding Month the Month 9 During the  During the Month Lapsed During Month Arising Therefrom
Month the Month

& Ordinary (1)

" Ordinary (2)

 Preference

Total Exercised Money During the Month ]HKD ) I ¢ Other Class

Equity Warrants

Nominal Value at Exercised Nominal Value No. Of New Sthares

Description of Warrants Currency of .
; : Close of During the at Close of the ", =
(Date of Expiry -ddimm/yyyy) Nominal Value Preceding Month Month Month Arising Therefrom
] | CTCTE | g I

,— @ Ordinary (1}
( ) C Ordinary (2)
Stock Code |_ i

' C Preference
Subscription Price |vko ‘| € Other Class

2 ] I N | I

oa— o
Stock Code| : ary (2}

06 . ‘ " Preference
Subscription Price IHKD | _____ . C Other Class

L@. Ordinary (1)
([ D ¢ Ordinary (2)
Stock Codel o

. C Preference
Subscription Price |_i-1l_<_l_3_ B | ) € Other Class

3. I - HKD

“o 1 L HKD ) f T [
@ Ordinary (1)

(| ) C Ordinary (2)
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Stock Code I B :

Subscription Price [HKD

|

C Preference
C Other Class

Stock Cede | _

Subscription Price |HKD ||

Convertibles
urre lose .
Class CAmgsxtOf Argfo g?etec?éd(i:ng Converted During Close of the NO: Of N.?r‘;v Sl;ares
_ Outstandin Month _the Month Arising Therefrom
n - o B T
& Qrdinary (1)
Stock Code I € Ordinary (2)
Subscription Price [Hkp | € Preference
 Other Class
2 | ] [Hko l I P | |
G Ordinary (1)
Stock Code I e Ordinary (2)
Subscription Price |HKD I C Preference
" Other Class
3 [ HKD |

@ Ordinary (1)
€ Ordinary (2)
C Preference
C Other Class

Other Issues of Shares

Type of Securities

—h

-IPlease Select One vIAt

.|Please Select One - |At

5. Bonus Issue

Price :

2. |Please Select One _v]At
Price :
3. [Please Select One  ~|At
Price :
4

Price :

HKD

HKD

HKD

HKD

No. Of New Shares

Arising Therefrom

Issue and allotment Date :
(dd/mmiyyyy)

Issue and allotment Date :
{dd/mmfyyyy)

Issue and allotment Date ;
(dd/mmiyyyy)

Issue and allotment Date :
(dd/mmfyyyy)

Issue and allotment Date ;
(dd/mmfyyyy}

https://www.esubmission.hkex.com.hk/MonthlyReturn/Form1/Submit.aspx

I__._
& Ordinary (1)
¢ Ordinary (2)
" Preference
 Other Class

|

@ Ordinary (1)
€ Ordinary (2)
" Preference
¢ Other Class

I

@& Ordinary (1)
" Ordinary (2)
. Preference
C Other Class

|

& Ordinary (1)
€ Ordinary (2)
 Preference
. Other Class

@ Ordinary {1)

20077472




" Ordinary (2)
C Preference
" Other Class

5. Repurchase of share Cancellation Date: |

{(dd/mmiyyyy) & Ordinary (1)

€ Crdinary (2)
 Preference
C Other Class

7. Redemption of share Redemption Date: | [

dd/mm/
( yyyy) @ Ordinary (1)

€ Ordinary (2)
" Preference
' Other Class

8. Other At Price : | Issue and allotment date |

[rco | @ Ordinary (1)

 Ordinary (2)

(Please specify) | " Preference

 Other Class

Remarks {Max 160 Characters):

Authorised Signatory
* Name [1ason C.W. Yeung

* Title |Company Secretary

| Note : All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market
' data at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification {o the company/issuer,
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Bank of China Limited M PR

2006 Estimated Results

Bank of China Ltd. and all members of Board of Directors warrant that the
information disclosed is authentic, accurate and complete, and contains no false
presentations, misleading statements and material omissions.

The financial information contained in this announcement is not audited by the
auditors of the Bank, which may be different from the audited financial information.
Potential investors of the Bank should exercise caution when dealing in the shares of
the Bank.

On 16 March 2007, the Bank received a notification issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation (Cai Shui [2007] No. 40) on the salaries paid
by the Bank to its employees that is allowable as a deductible expense for computing
the Bank’s income tax for 2006. Accordingly, the Bank’s total income tax expense for
2006 is expected to be reduced by approximately RMB 4,600 million.

The Bank conducted an estimate of the Bank’s consolidated financial information for
2006 in accordance with the Accounting Standard System for Business Enterprise
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China and the
Accounting Regulations for Financial Institutions. The Bank currently estimates that
its net profit for the year 2006 is expected to exceed the net profit for the year 2005
(RMB 27,942 million) by more than 50%.

Bank of China Ltd.
March 19, 2007
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BANK OF CHINA
BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

Summary of the 2006 Annual Report

IMPORTANT NOTES

The Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™) and its directors, the Board of
Supervisors and its supervisors and the Senior Management of the Bank warrant that there are no
fraudulent disclosures, misleading statements or material omissions in this report, and that they will be
individually and jointly responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the report,

The Board meeting held on 22 March 2007 reviewed and adopted the text and summary of the 2006
Annual Report. 16 directors were required to attend the meeting, with 16 present at the meeting. 16
directors exercised the right of voting, and 5 supervisors of the Bank participated in the meeting
without voting right.

The 2006 annual financial statements under PRC Accounting Standards and International Financial
Reporting Standards have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public
Accountants Limited Company (*PWC”') and PricewaterhouseCoopers according to the Chinese and
international audit standards respectively, and they formed the unqualified auditor’s opinion.

Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited
22 March 2007

Chairman Xiao Gang, President Li Lihui, Executive Vice President in charge of Accounting Function
Zhou Zaiqun and General Manager in charge of the Accounting Department Liu Yanfen undertake that
the financial statements in the annual report are true and complete. The Summary extracts from the
text of the 2006 Annual Report, Investors should read the whole report to get detailed information.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Place of Listing: A share: The Shanghai Stock Exchange
H share: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Name and Stock Code A share: Bank of China, 601988

of the stock: H share: Bank of China, 3988
Registered Address: No. 1 Fuxingmen Nei Dalie, Beijing, China
Office Address: No. | Fuxingmen Nei Dalie, Beijing, China
Post code: 100818
Website: http://www.boc.cn

E-mail: bocir@bank-of-china.com




2.4 Secretary to the Board of
Directors:
Office Address:
Post code:
Telephone:
Fax:
E-mail:
2.5 Listing Affairs Representatives:
Office Address:
Post code:
Telephone:
Fax:
E-mail:

§3

YEUNG Jason Chi Wai

No. 1 Fuxingmen Nei Dalie, Beijing, China
100818

8610-66596688

8610-66594568

bocir@bank-of-china.com

LUO Nan

No. 1 Fuxingmen Nei Dalie, Beijing, China
100818

8610-66594626

8610-66594568

bocir@bank-of-china.com

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS DATA

(The following is prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP and “Financial Enterprise Accounting

Standards (2001)")

Results of operations
Net interest income
Non-interest income
Operating income

Operating and administrative expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating profit
Non-operating income, net
Impairment losses

Profit before income tax
Profit after tax:

Net profit

Total dividend

routine items
Balance sheet items
Total assets

Debt investment securities
Total Labilities
Deposit from Customers

Loans and advances to customers, net

Net profit after deducting the non-

Capital and reserves attributable to the

equity holders of the Bank

Average (shares, million)
Year-end(shares, million)

Number of ordinary shares in issue

Unit: RMB million

2004 2003("er 1)

Note 2006 2005

120,707 100,405 84,985

16,921 15,623 19,752

2 137,628 116,028 104,737
(53,614)  (45,604)  (41,915)
(6,462) (5,680) (4,981)

77,552 64,744 57,841

1,044 1,381 532
(11,587)  (10,985)  (23,797)

67,009 55,140 34,576

47,152 32,597 25,246

41,892 27,492 20,932

10,154 14,112 14,200

3 39,822 26,174 20,310
5,325,273 4,742,806 4,270,443
2,337,513 2,151,893 2,071,693

4 1,879,418 1,669,591 1,309,479
4,907,459 4,480,186 4,037,705
4,095,422 3,703,777 3,342,477
388,254 233,842 205351

5 236,055 186,425 186,390
253,839 209,427 186,390

2

71,904
13,781
85,685
(34,041)
(3,972)
47,672
179
(16,432)
31,419
24,743

- - 21,553

21,542

3,979,965
1,921,131
1,092,187
3,750,489
3,035,956

203,752

186,390
186,390




Per share
Earnings per share (weighted average,
RMB)
Dividend per share (before tax, RMB)
Net assets per share (RMB)
Adjusted net assets per share (RMB)
Key financial ratios
Return on average total assets (%)
Return on average owner’s equity
(excluding minority interests, %)
Return on average owner’s equity
(including minority interests, %)
Net interest spread (%)
Net interest margin (%)
Loan-deposit ratio (%)
Non-interest income to operating
income (%)
Cost 1o income ratio (%)
Capital adequacy Ratios
Core capital adequacy ratio (%)
Capital adequacy ratio (%)
Asset quality
Non-performing loans
NPL ratio (%)
Allowance for loan impairment losses
Provision coverage ratio (%)
Credit cost (%)
Human resources
Number of employees of the Group
(person)
Credit ratings
Moody's
Standard & Poor’s
Fitch Ratings
Exchange rate
USD/RMB year-end middle rate
EUR/RMB year-end middle rate
HKD/RMB year-end middle rate
Share price (year-end closing price)
Bank of China (601988.SH, RMB per
ordinary share)
Bank of China (3988.HK, HKD per
ordinary share)
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(2388.HK, HKD per ordinary share)

Note

D ooo =1 O

11
12
13
14
15

16
17

18

19
20

21

2006

0.18
0.04
1.53
1.52

0.94
13.47

13.86
2.28
2.44

59.38

12.29
38.96

11.44
13.59

98,220
4.04
94,293
96.00
0.50

232,632
A2
BBB+
A
7.8087
10.2665
1.0047
5.43

4,27

21.15

2005

0.15
0.08
1.12
1.11

0.72
12.52

13.16
2.21
2.32

60.35

13.46
39.30

8.08
10.42

103,226
4.62
83,153
80.55
0.50

229,742
A2
BBB+
A—
8.0702
9.5797
1.0403
N/A

N/A

14.95

2004

0.11
(.08
1.10
1.09

0.61
10.23

10.92
2.05
2.15

64.22

18.86
40.02

8.48
10.04

109,920
5.12
74,769
68.02
1.11

238,672
A2
BBB-
BBB+
8.2765
11.2627
1.0637
N/A

N/A

14.85

2003(ﬂ0!(’ f)

0.12
1.09
1.07

0.68
10.58

10.78
1.95
2.03

71.06

16.08
39.73

N/A
N/A

351,224
16.28
236,342
67.29
N/A

241,401
A2
BB+
BBB+
8.2767
10.3383
1.0657
N/A

N/A

14.60




Bank of China Limited was formed and registered in Beijing. On 1 June and 5 July 2006, the Bank’s
shares were successfully listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, respectively, being the first bank in China dually listed in the international and domestic
capital markets. The Bank remains a state-controlled joint stock commercial bank.

Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

Note 5.

Note 6.

Nete 7.

Note 8.
Note 9.

Note 10,

Note 11,

Note 12.

Note 13.

Note 14.

Note 15.
Note 16.

Nore 17.
Note 18.
Note 19,
Note 20.

Note 21.

The results of operations and related financial ratios for the year 2003 were adjusted to exclude the net gains on the disposal
of BOCHK shares of RMB7.2 billion.

Operating income comprises net interest income and non-interest income. Non-interest income includes net fee and
commission income, net trading (losses)/ gains. net (losses)/ gains on investment securities and other operating income.

The non-routine profit/loss was calculated in accordance with the requirements Question & Answer No. 1 Concerning
Disclosure Conventien for Companies Offering Shares to the Public — Non-routine Profit/Loss (revised 2004).

Debt investment securities include available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity securities, investment securities classified as
loans and receivables and trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss.

Average number of ordinary shares in issue represents the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
period.

Earnings per share (weighted average) = net profit + average number of ordinary shares: average number of ordinary shares
is calculated with the number of days as the weight in accordance with the Preparation Conventions of Infermatien Disclosure
by Compaznies Offering Securities to the Public No. 9 — the Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings
per Share,

Dividend per share = total dividend <+ number of ordinary shares in issuc at the year-end. The calculation of weighted
average amounts did not consider the impact of funds raised from issuing ordinary shares to strategic investors in 2005 duc to
the fact that the transfer of the funds 10 the Bank's accounts was only completed on December 30 and 31 respectively.

Net assets per share = the total owner’s equity at year-end + number of ordinary shares in issue at the year-end

Adjusted net assets per share = (owner's equity at year-end — accounts receivable above 3 years — prepaid expenses — long-
term prepaid expenses )+ number of ordinary shares in issue at year-end. Tt is computed according to the Standards
Concerning the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public (No. 2) —
Contents and Formats of Annual Report (Revision 2005) promulgated by China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC).

Return on average total assets = profit after tax + average 1otal assets, average total assets = {total assets at the beginning of
the year + total assets at the year end) =+ 2

Return on average owner’s equity (excluding minority interests) = net profit = average owner’s equity, average owner’s
equity = (owner’s equity at the beginning of the year + owner’s cquity at the end of the year) <+ 2. As there were a number of
financial restructuring transactions directed by the PRC government during 2003, the financial data of the year are not
comparable with that of 2002. Therefore, return on average owner’s equity of 2003 is calculated based on the year-end
owner’s equity.

Return on average owner's cquity (including minority interests) is calculated according to the Guidelines on the Corporate
Governance and Supervision of State-owned Commercial Banks (Yinjianfa [2006] No. 22).

Net interest spread = average yicld of interest-earning assets — average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. Average yield of
interest-earning assets = intercst income -+ average balance of interest-eaming assets. Average cost of interest-bearing
liabilities = intcrest expense = average balance of interest-bearing liabilitics. Average balances are the daily average
balances derived from the Bank’s management accounts (unaudited).

Net interest margin = net interest income -+ average balance of interest-earning assets. Average balances are daily average
balances derived from the Bank's management accounts (unaudited).

Loan-deposit ratio = loan balance at year-end + customer deposit balance at year-end.

Non-interest income to operating income = non-intercst income = operating income. In 2006, excluding the loss from
revaluation of foreign currency positions of RMB9.82 billion (2005: RMB4.746 billion), the non-interest income accounted
for 18.14% (2005: 16.87%) of the total operating income.

Cost to income ratio = operating and administrative expenses <+ operating income
NPL ratio = non-performing loans balance at year-end + gross loan balance at year-end
Provision coverage ratio = allowance for loan impairment losses at year-end + gross NPL balance at year-end

Credit cost = loan impairment losses + average loan balance. where average loan balance = (loan balance at the beginning of
the year + loan balance at the end of the year) ~ 2 o

Number of cmployees of the Group includes temporary and contract staff,




SHAREHOLDERS

4.1 Changes in Share Capital
{Unit: Share)
1 January 2046 Increase/decrease in (he report period 31 December 2006
Issue of shares Issue of H [ssue of A
Number % before IPO Shares Shares Others Sub-total Number %
L. Shares subject to selling restriction 173,487,740.209  63.14%
1. State-owned shares (promoters’
shares) 174,128 718217 §3.15% -2803313477 2803213477 171325404240 £7.49%
2. Shares held by stale-owned legal
persons 8514415652 -8,514,415.652 0
3. Shares held by other domestic
investers 3038959000 876,623,531 2162335469 2162335469  0.85%
Incl.:
Shares held by domestic legal
persons
Shares held by domestic natural
persons
4. Shares held by foreign investors 35268644140 1685% -15.208 644,140 -35.208 644,140
Tnel.:
Shares held by overseas legal
persons 35,298,644.140  1585% -35,108,644.150 -35,298 644,140
Shares held by overseas natural
persons
I1. Shares net subject to selting
restriction 80,351, 421,800 31.66%
|. RMB-denominated erdinary shares 3,454 547 000 876,623,531 4331,170.531  4,331,170,53] 1.71%
2. Domestically listed foreign shares
3. Overseas listed foreign shares 29,403,878,000 46,016,373,269  76,020,251.269  76,020.251.269  29.95%
4. Others

1L Total 209,427,362,357 100.00%  8.514,415,652 29403,878,000  6,493,506,000 0 44411,795,657 253,839,162,009 100.00%

Note:

I. The Bank issued 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares to National Council for Social Security Fund (“"NCSSF”) on 13 March 2006.

I On 1 June 2006, the Bank completed a successful initial public offering of 25,568,590,000 H Shares and was listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. On 9 June 2006, pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option, a further 3,835,288,000 H Shares were issued,
thereby issuing in aggrepate a total of 29,403,878,000 H shares. During the offering and listing of H Shares, 35,298,644,140 unlisted
foreign shares held by overseas strategic investors of the Bank, 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares held by NCSSF, and 2,803,313.477
ordinary shares transferred by the promoter — Central SAFE Investments Limited (“Huijin") to NCSSF according to state provisions
were all converted into H Shares and became listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,

[II.  In June 2006, 6.493.506,000 A Shares were offered to the public. On 29 June 2006, the A shares offered to the public by the Bank and
171,325,404,.740 ordinary shares held by the promoter-Huijin were registered as A shares. On 5 July 2006, the Bank’s A Shares were
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange. Of the A Shares, 1,285,712,000 shares were placed 1o 14 strategic investors with a lock-up period of
18 months, 876,623,531 shares were placed with a lock-up period of three months and 876,623,469 shares with a lock-up period of six
months to the offline investors, and 3,454,547,000 shares were not subject 1o selling restriction. The shares placed to offline investors
have been unfrozen and allowed to be tradable on the stock exchange on 5 October 2006 and 5 January 2007 respectively.

IV. By the end of 31 December 2006, the Bank has issued 253,839,162,009 shares, including 177.818,910,740 A Shares and 76,020,251,269
H Shares.

V.  “Selling Restriction” in the above-mentioned table refers to A Shares issued by the Bank only.

V1.

In the report period, the Bank has not issued bonus shares or transferred shares from the surpius reserve.




4.2.1 Number of Shareholders and Shareholdings

The Bank successfully floated H Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 1 June 2006, including
25,568,590,000 issued in the IPO and 3,835,288,000 shares issued by exercise of over-allotment
option on 9 June 2006. The number of H Shares issued, at an offer price of HKD2.95 per share,
accounted for 11.89% of the Bank’s total equity after the offering. The Bank raised approximately
HKDS86.7 billion in the offering. Thereafter, the Bank successfully offered A Shares from 19 to 23
June 2006, at an issue price of RMB3.08 per share and was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
5 July. 6,493,506,000 A Shares were issued in the IPO, accounting for approximately 2.56% of the
fully diluted total equity. RMB20 billion was raised in the offering.

The IPOs of H-Share and A-Share account for 14.14% of the total enlarged share capital of the Bank.
After the IPOs, the share capital of the Bank increased to RMB253,839,162,009 or 253,839,162,009
shares.

4.2.2 Shareholder Information at the End of the Report Period

As of 31 December 2006, the Bank had 846,127 shareholders, of which, there were 378,972 holders of
H Shares, and 467,155 holders of A Shares.

4.2.3 Top ten shareholders as at 31 December 2006

(Unit: Share)
Proportion

in total Shares

Type of Type of Number of shares share pledged or

No. Shareholder's name Shareholder shares held capital (%) frozen shares
1 Central SAFE Investments Limited State-owned A 171,325,404,740 67.49%
2 HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign H 30.262,318,674 11.92%
3 RBS China Investments S.a.r.l. Foreign H 2001.942,736,236 8.25%
4 Asia Financial Holdings Pte. Lid Foreign H 10.471,368,118 4.13%
5 National Council for Social Security Fund. State-owned H 8.377.341.329 3.30%

PRC

6 UBS AG Foreign H 3.377.860.684 1.33%
7 Asian Devclopment Bank Foreign H 506,679,102 0.20%
8 The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd Foreign H 473,052.000 0.19%
9 Wingreat International Limited Foreign H 420,490,000 0.17%
10 Best Sense Investments Limited Foreign H 236,526,000 0.09%
10 Turbe Top Limited Foreign H 236,526,000 0.09%

The number of shares held by H share shareholders was recorded in the Register of Members as kept
by the H Share Registrar of the Bank.

The Bank is not aware of whether the shares held by the aforesaid shareholders have been pledged or
frozen, nor is the Bank aware of the existence of connected relations among the above-mentioned
shareholders.




4.3

4.4

{Unit: Share)

Number of
shares not
subject to  Class
selling of
No. Shareholder’s name restriction shares
1 ICBC — Southern Securities Investment Fund for Stocks with Good 210,000,000 A
Performance and Growth
2 Agricultural Bank of China — Jingshun Great Wall Domestic Demand 96,629,963 A
Growth No. 2 Stock Securities Investment Fund
3 ICBC — Lion Value Growth Stock Securities Investment Fund 73,469,700 A
4 IFC — Standard Chartered — CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS 62,858,475 A
LIMITED
5 ICBC — SSE 50 Trading Open-end Index Securities Investment Fund 49,869,579 A
6 ICBC-E Fund Value Selective Stock Securities Investment Fund 42,000,000 A
7  China Pacific Life Insurance Co., Ltd — traditional-ordinary insurance 35,179,154 A
products
8 Tiance Investment Management and Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 31,575,159 A
9  China Life Insurance Company Limited — traditional-ordinary 27,058,100 A
insurance products — 005L-CTO001 SH
10 Xinghe Securities Investment Fund 25,843,028 A

Some of the above shareholders are managed by the same legal entity. Save for that, the Bank is not
aware of any connected relations and concerted action among the above-mentioned shareholders.

Issue of Subordinated Bonds and Use of Proceeds

The purpose for the Bank's issue of the subordinated bonds was to effectively mitigate liquidity risk
and optimize the maturity structure of assets and liabilities. The Bank plans to utilize the long-term
funds raised by the issuance to grant long and medium-term loans, especially those for high-quality
infrastructure construction projects.

In the report period, the Bank has not issued subordinated bonds.

The Controlling Shareholder of the Bank
Central SAFE Investments Limited (“Huijin”)

Huijin is a wholly state-owned company with limited liability. Established on 16 December 2003, the
company has a registered capital of RMB372.465 billion and paid-in capital of RMB496.6125 billion.
Its legal representative is Hu Xiaolian. On behalf of the state, Huijin performs the rights and
obligations as an investor in the Bank, and implements the equity investment subject to the approval
of the State Council and policies and arrangement relating to the state’s reform of state-owned
financial institutions. Huijin does not engage in other business activities.




Name

XIAQ Gang

LI Lihui

ZHANG Jinghua
YU Erniu

ZHU Yan
ZHANG Xinze
HONG Zhihua
HUANG Haibo

Sir Frederick Anderson
GOODWIN

SEAH Lim Huat Peter

HUA Qingshan

LI Zaohang

Anthony Francis NEOH

William Peter COOKE

Patrick de SAINT-
AIGNAN

Alberto TOGNI

LIU Ziqiang

WANG Xucqiang

LIU Wanming

LI Chunyu

L1U Dun

ZHOU Zaiqun

5.1 Directors, Supervisors

Age
48
54
50
57
50
60
54
54

48

60

53

51

60

75

58

68
58
49
48

47

43

54

and Senior Management

Gender

Male

Male

Malc

Male

Female

Male

Female

Female

Male

Malc

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Position

Chairman

Vice 'Chairman and
President
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Dircctor

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Executive Director and
Executive Vice
President

Executive Director and
Exccutive Vice
President

Independent Non-
Executive Director

Independent Non-
Executive Director

Independent Non-
Executive Director

Independent Nen-
Executive Director
Chairman of Board of
Supervisors
Supervisor

Supervisor

Employee Supervisor

Employee Supervisor

Term of office

From August 2004
to August 2007
From August 2004
to August 2007

From August 2004

to August 2007
From August 2004
to August 2007
From August 2004
to August 2007
From August 2004
to August 2007
From August 2004
to August 2007
From August 2004
to August 2007
From January
2006 to
January2009
From June 2006 to
June 2009
From August 2004
to August 2007

From August 2004
to August 2007

From August 2004
to August 2007

From December
2004 to
December 2007

From January
2006 to January
2009

From June 2006 to
June 2009

From August 2004
to August 2007

From August 2004
to August 2007

From August 2004
to August 2007

From December
2004 to
Pecember 2007

From December
2004 to
December 2007

Executive Vice President From August 2004

to August 2007

pre-tax
compensation

received from the
company in the

report period
(thousand)

1.523.770

1,528,657

1,307.831

1,307.235

400

606.464

400

145.833

1.312.599

878.334

874.247

478.632

422.972

1.437.055

Total amount of Whether receives

also compensated
by a controlling
shareholder
company or other
associated
companies

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No
No
No
No

No

No

Yes




5.2

pre-tax also compensated
compensation by a controlling

received from the shareholder
company in the company or other
report period associated
Name Age Gender Position Term of office {thousand) companies
ZHANG Yanling 55 Female Executive Vice President From August 2004 1,313.222 Yes
to August 2007
ZHANG Lin 50 Female Secretary of Party From August 2004 1,230.033 No
Discipline Committee to August 2007
ZHU Min 54 Male Executive Vice President From August 2006 1,193.880 No
to August 2009
WANG Yongli 42 Male Executive Vice President From August 2006 1,187.267 No
to August 2009
YEUNG Jason Chi Wai 52 Male Secretary 10 the Board of From November 5.618.777 Yes
Directors 2005 to
November 2008
ZHU Xingiang' 54 Male Executive Assistant From November 1,030.727 Yes
President 2003 to August
2006
Lonnie DOUNN? 54 Male Chief Credit Officer From March 2005 7.915.785 No
to September
2006

' Zhu Xingiang resigned in August, 2006 for personal reason.

Lonnie Dounn resigned in September, 2006 for personal reason,
Note:
(1} In the report period, none of the directors, supervisors and senior management holds the Bank's shares.

(2} Independent Non-Executive Directors’ compensation is based on “the resolution of the fifth session of the first board of directors’
meeting of the Bank”, The supervisors’ compensation is based on * the resolution of the second extraordinary meeting of
shareholders of the Bank in 2005".

The annual compensation of Independent Non-Exccutive Directors and supervisors should be proposed by the Personnel and
Remuneration Committee and submitted to the Board of Directors and sharcholders’ meeting for review and approval.

The compensation of the senior management is based on the Bank’s Management Measures on Remuneration of Senior
Management. The employee supervisors’ compensation is based on staff salary control system.

(3) Non-Executive Director holding a position in a shareholder of the Bank does not receive any compensation from the Bank. They
are remunerated by the respective shareholder entity where they hold a position.

Compensation for Directors, Supervisors and the Senior Management in 2006

Our Executive Directors and Supervisors, who are also our employees and our senior management
personnel, receive compensation in the form of salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind, contributions to
pension schemes,as well as other pension through our contribution to their social insurance and
housing plans. Our Independent Non-Executive Directors receive directors’ fees and allowance. Our
Non-Executive Directors do not receive any salary or directors’ fees from us.

The aggregate fees and compensation paid by us to all our Directors, Supervisors and senior
management members in 2006 were RMB32.1133 million. A total of RMB2.6 million was contributed
for the social insurance, supplementary insurance expenses, and housing fund for Directors,
Supervisors and senior management members.
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6.1

{RMB million)

Total amount of Directors’ fees and compensation 32.1133
Independent Non-Executive directors’ fees and other income 1.5523

Number of
Compensation range - persons
Above and including RMB7.00 million up to RMB7.99 million 1
Above and including RMB6.00 million up to RMB6.99 miilion 0
Above and including RMB5.00 million up to RMB5.99 million 1
Above and including RMB2.00 million up to RMB4.99 million 0
Above and including RMB1.00 million up to RMB1.99 million I B
RMB0.99 million and below 8

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review
Summary of financial position and results of operations of the Group for 2006.
Praofit after tax

For 2006, the Group earned a profit after tax of RMB47.2 billion, an increase of RMB14.6 billion
(44.65%) compared to the prior year. Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank amounted to
RMB41.9 billion, an increase of RMB14.4 billion (52.38%). These results exceeded the objectives in
the budget approved by the Bank’s shareholders and the profit forecast developed in connection with
the Bank’s initial public offering (“IPO™) of its ordinary shares. The substantial improvement in profit
after tax for the year was attributable to robust growth in operating income, improved operating
efficiency, effective management of credit costs, and a decrease in the effective tax rate.

Earnings per share

In 2006, the weighted average earnings per share of the Bank was RMBO.18, an increase of RMBO0.03
compared to the prior year. The capital raised in connection with the Bank’s IPO in 2006, and the
related listing of its ordinary shares on both the Hong Kong and Shanghai markets, further increased
the Bank’s capital base and ordinary shares outstanding. Benefiting from the Group’s strong profits,
the weighted average earnings per share increased compared to the prior year.

ROA & ROE

During 2006, return on total assets was 0.94%, the highest level among the last four years,
representing an increase of 0.22 percentage points compared to the prior year. Return on owners’
equity excluding minority interests and including minority interests were 13.47% and 13.86%
respectively, representing an increase of 0.95 percentage points and (.70 percentage points
respectively.

Revenue growth

The Group achieved operating income of RMB137.6 billion, an increase of RMB21.6 billion (18.62%)
compared to the prior year. This increase was primarily due to the continued increase in the average
balances of loans and investment securities, as well as an increase in average yields. At the same time,
the Group intensified its focus on developing fee-based businesses, and there was continued
improvement in net fee and commission income.




The Group recognized non-interest income of RMB16.9 billion in 2006, an increase of RMBI1.3
billion (8.31%) compared to the prior year. The ratio of non-interest income 10 operating income was
12.29%, a decrease of 1.17 percentage points compared to the prior year. Excluding the effect of loss
from revaluation of foreign currency positions, this ratio was 18.14%, an increase of 1.27 percentage
points.

Cost to income ratio

The cost to income ratio was 38.96%, a decrease of 0.34 percentage points compared to the prior year,
the lowest among the past four years. This decrease was mainly due to the vigorous control of
operating costs, as well as the robust growth in operating income.

Credit cost

The credit cost for year 2006 was 0.50%, keeping sustained compared to the prior year. While the
Group has increased the size of its loan portfolio in recent years, credit costs have been maintained at
a relatively low level. Improvement in asset quality, resulting from continuous improvements in the
Group’s credit risk management processes, and diligent efforts directed at disposing of non-
performing assets contributed significantly to the Group’s ability to control credit costs.

Non-performing loans

At the end of year 2006, non-performing loans totaled RMB98.2 billion, a decrease of RMB35.0 billion
compared to the end of 2005. Non-performing loan ratio was 4.04%, a decrease of (.58 percentage
points compared to the end of 2005. The Group achieved its “dual decrease” objective of reducing
both non-performing loans and the non-performing loan ratio.

Allowance for loan impairment losses

At the end of 2006, allowance for loan impairment losses was RMB94.3 billion, an increase of
RMB11.1 billion compared to the end of 2005. Provision coverage ratio was 96%, an increase of 15.45
percentage points compared to the end of 2005.

Capital adequacy ratio

At the end of 2006, the Group’s capital adequacy ratio was 13.59% and its core capital adequacy ratio
was 11.44%, representing increases of 3.17 percentage points and 3.36 percentage points,
respectively, compared to those at the prior year-end. These ratios were the highest levels in recent
years. This increase is primarily due to the significant core capital raised through the IPO and the
decrease in the Group’s net foreign currency exposure, which reduces the related market risk capital
requirement.

Income Statement Analysis
Net interest income

In 2006, the Group’s net interest income was RMB120.707 billion, an increase of RMB20.302 billion
(20.22%) compared to the prior year.

Net interest income is affected by the average balances and average interest rates of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Domestically, interest rates related to interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities are largely influenced by the benchmark interest rates and interest rate
policy established by the People’s Bank of China (“PBQOC”). Significantly, the PBOC establishes
floors benchmark interest rates for loans and ceilings benchmark interest rates for deposits
denominated in RMB offered by domestic banks. Within the context of the framework established by
the PBOC, the average interest rates of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities of the
domestic operations are also influenced by other factors such as Chinese macro-economic changes,
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foreign currency interest rate, local economic environment, financial market conditions and related

fiscal policies.

The average balances' and average interest rates of the Group’s interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities are shown in the following tables:

Items

The Group

Interest-earning assets

Loans and advances to customers

Debt securities

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions and due from central
banks

Sub-Total

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits from customers

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions and due to central banks

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Sub-Total

Net interest spread

12

2006 2005
Average Average
Average interest Average interest rate
balance rate (%) balance (%)

(Unit: RMB million, other than the percentage)

2,352,262 545% 2,192,058 5.00%
1,883,760 3.57% 1,475,673 3.05%
710,323 2.70% 655359 1.94%
4,946,345 4.34% 4,323,090 3.87%
4,070,308 1.96% 3,560,014 1.57%
373,811 251% 355,856 1.83%
109,910 4.21% 115,843 3.90%
4,554,029 2.06% _ 4,031,713 1.66%
2.28% 2.21%




Items

Domestic RMB activities

Interest-earning assets

Loans and advances to customers

Debt securities

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions and due from central
banks

Sub-Total

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits from customers

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions and due to central banks

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Sub-Tota!l

Net interest spread

Domestic foreign currency activities

Interest-earning assets
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities

Due from and placements with banks and other

financial institutions and due from central
banks

Sub-Total

Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits from customers
Due to and placements from banks and other

financial institutions and due to central banks

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Sub-Total

Net interest spread (%)

Average Average
Average interest Average interest rate
balance rate (%) balance (%)

(Unit: RMB million, other than the percentage)

1,604,412 540% 1,443,512 5.40%
906,469 2.35% 656,983 2.41%
350,694 1.81% 313,591 1.66%

2,861,575 399% _2414,086 4.10%

2,792,952 1.57% 2,332,869 1.52%
176,661 2.14% 152,810 2.47%

60,001 4.62% 53,959 4.71%

3,029,614 1.67% __2.539.638 1.65%

2.32% 2.45%

(Unit: USD million, other than the percentage)

40,535 5.22% 41,770 4.01%
77,046 4.75% 60,367 3.52%
27,691 2.87% 26,348 1.74%
145,272 4.52% 128.485 331%
59,288 1.98% 58,903 1.16%
19,465 2.50% 20,467 1.03%
6,391 3.65% 7,361 3.27%
85,144 2.22% 86,731 1.31%
2.30% 2.00%

! Average balances of interest-carning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are the average daily balance derived from the Group’s

management accounts which have not been audited.
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summarized in the following table:

Net interest
income analysis

Interest
Items 2006 2005 Change Volume rate
(Unit: RMB million)
The Group
Interest-earning assets
Loans and advances to customers 128,270 109,711 18,559 8,010 10,549
Debt securities 67,195 44,938 22257 12,447 9,810

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions and due from central banks 19,205 12,696 6,509 1,066 5,443

Sub-Total 214,670 167,345 47325 21,523 25,802
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits from customers 79,939 55914 24,025 8,012 16,013
Due 1o and placements from banks and other financial ' e
institutions and due to central banks 9,393 6,512 2,881 329 2,552
Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued 4,631 4,514 117 (231) 348
Sub-Total 93,963 66,940 27,023 _ 8,110 18913
Net interest income 120,707 100,405 20,302 13,413 _ 6,889

2 Impact of volume changes on interest income and cxpenses is calculated based on the changes in average balances of interest-carning

assets and interest-bearing liabilities during the reporting period. Impact of interest rate changes on interest income and expenses is
computed bascd on the changes in the average interest rates of interest-camning assets and interest-bearing liabilities during the
reporting period. Changes caused by changes in both volume and rate have been allocated to rate.

Interest income

The Group’s interest income was RMB214.670 billion, an increase of RMB47.325 billion (28.28%)
compared to the prior year. This increase was primarily attributable to the growth in the average
balance as well as the average yield of interest-earning assets. In this regard, the average balance of
interest-earning assets increased by 14.42% and reached RMB4,946.345 billion. The consolidated
yield on interest-earning assets increased 47 basis points during 2006 to 4.34%.

Loans and advances to customers

The Group’s interest income earned on loans was RMB128.270 billion, an increase of RMB18.559
billion (16.92%) as compared to the prior year. This increase reflects the judicious increase in loan
balances during the year and an increase in both domestic and foreign currency yields. After
cautiously taking risk and reward in consideration, the Group’s average balance of loans and advances
to customers reached RMB2,352.262 billion, representing an increase of 7.31% compared to the prior
year. Continued increases in foreign currency yields (in particular the USD), the PBOC’s increases in
the RMB loan benchmark rate in April and August of 2006 pushed, the combined yield on overseas
and domestic loans to 5.45%, an increase of 45 basis points.




The Group’s interest income earned on debt securities was RMB67.195 billion, an increase of
RMB22.257 billion (49.53%) compared to the prior year. The growth was largely attributable to an
intense focus on optimizing the mix of the Group’s investment portfolio, including the IPO proceeds,
in higher yielding securities. This deployment of excess liquidity resulted in an increase of 27.65% in
the average balance of debt securities during the year to RMB1, 883.760 billion. The Group has also
continued to proactively manage the composition of its debt securities portfolio, taking into
consideration continuing increases in the yields on securities denominated in foreign currencies, in
particular the USD. The average yield of debt securities increased 52 basis points to 3.57% during the
year.

The average yield of debt securities denominated in RMB was 2.35%, a decline of 6 basis points
compared to the prior year. The decline was primarily attributable to the surplus liquidity in the RMB
financial markets, pushing down the yields on RMB securities. The yield of one year PBOC bills
decreased steadily from 2004, although the decline stabilized and began to rise from the third quarter
of 2005. This effect was fully reflected in the Bank's earnings in 2006.

Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions and due from central banks

The Group’s interest income derived from due from banks and other financial institutions and due
from central banks rose RMB6.509 billion (51.27%) to RMB19.205 billion. The increcase was
primarily due to the growth in customer deposits, a series of increases by the PBOC in deposit reserve
requirements during the year from 7.5% to 9.0%, and continued increases in overseas interest rates,
particularly USD. The average yield on items due from banks and other financial institutions and due
from the central bank increased by 76 basis points during 2006 to 2.70%.

The Group continues its efforts to minimize the relative balance of this lower yielding asset class. At
the end of 2006, the ratio of the average balance of items due from banks and other financial
institutions to that of total interest-earning assets declined from 15.0% to 14.0%, or 1.0 percentage
point compared to the prior year.

Interest expense

The Group’s interest expense was RMB93.963 billion, an increase of RMB27.023 billion (40.37%)
compared to the prior year. This increase was principally attributable to a 12.96% growth in the
average balance of interest-bearing liabilities to RMB4,554.029 billion, as well as a 40 basis points
increase in the average cost to 2.06%.

Deposits from customer

In 2006, the Group’s interest expense for customer deposits was RMB79.939 billion, representing an
increase of RMB24.025 billion (42.97%) compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily due
to the Group’s concerted efforts to expand its RMB customer deposit base, with the average balance of
customer deposits increasing to RMB4,070.308 billion, an increase of 14.33% during the year and a
rise of 39 basis points in the average cost on customer deposits to 1.96%. This increase in average cost
was mainly attributable to: the continued rise in foreign interest rates, particularly USD interest rates;
the effect of the PBOC’s five upward adjustments of the benchmark interest rate for smaller balance
foreign currency deposit during 2005, which was fully reflected during 2006; the PBOC’s increase of
the benchmark interest rate for RMB deposits in August 2006; and a rise in the proportion of fixed
deposits in overseas operations to total deposits.
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The Group’s interest expense for items due to banks and other financial institutions and due to central
banks was RMB9.393 billion, an increase of RMB2.881 billion (44.24%) compared to the prior year.
The increase was primarily doe to the interest rate increases related to major foreign currencies,
particularly the USD, which resulted in a rise of 68 basis points on the average yield and to 2.51%.

The average interest rate of items due to banks and other financial institutions and due to the central
bank denominated in RMB was 2.14%, a decrease of 33 basis points. During the year, the Group
intensified its efforts at proactive liability management to minimize the balance of this relatively high
yielding class of interest-bearing liabilities.

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Special purpose borrowings are long-term borrowings in multiple currencies from foreign
governments and/or banks in the form of export credit loans, foreign government loans and other
subsidized loans. These special purpose loans are normally used to finance projects with special
commercial purposes in PRC. The Group’s interest expense for special purpose borrowings and bonds
issued was RMB4.631 billion, an increase of RMBO0.117 billion (2.59%) compared to the prior year.
The increase was mainly due to the rise in interest rates of major foreign currencies, in particular the
USD. The average interest rate of special purpose borrowings and bonds issued rose 31 basis points
during the year to 4.21%.

Net interest margin

During 2006, the Group continued to improve the effectiveness of its asset and liability management,
successfully reducing the proportions of relative low yielding assets to total assets and relative high
cost liabilities to total liabilities. Due to continued increases in the interest rates of the major foreign
currencies, in particular the USD, and the continued use of RMB/USD swap transactions, the Group’s
net interest margin rose by 12 basis points to 2.44%. RMB and foreign currency net interest margins of
domestic operations, however, have experienced opposite trends.

Net interest margin (%) 2006 2005 2004 2003
Domestic operations: foreign currency business 3.22 243 1.41 1.55
Domestic operations: RMB business 2.23 2.37 2.72 2.38

Foreign currency net interest margin

The Group’s foreign currency net interest margin rose 79 basis points to 3.22%. The Group entered
into RMB/USD currency swap transactions attributable to its more active approach to its asset and
liability management, the surplus liquidity in the market and the lack of RMB investment alternatives.
These swap transactions resulted in the Group’s earning additional USD interest income. The related
swap costs were recognized under “Net trading (losses)/gain”. And the change of net interest margin
was also attributable to the continued increase in overseas interest rates, particularly USD.

RMB net interest margin

Although the PBOC’s adjustments to the benchmark rates in RMB loans and deposits in 2006 had a
positive impact on RMB net interest income, the RMB net interest margin narrowed compared to the
prior year. The decline was primarily attributabie to the changes in the domestic macro-economic
environment and intensified competition in PRC capital markets led to a decline in the average yield
of RMB debt securities and discounted bills compared to the prior year, and at the same time, the
proportion of the average balance of such items to interest-earning assets denominated in RMB
increased, which led to the average interest rate of interest-earning assets denominated in RMB
declined from last year’s 4.10% to this year’s 3.99%. As aforesaid, the Bank entered into RMB/USD
swap transactions to improve the income, but these swap transactions will result in a decline in RMB
interest income.
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Unit: RMB million

2006 2005 2004 2003

Net fee and commission income 14,323 9,247 8,557 7,353
Net trading (losses)/income (3,779) 4,482 8,752 4,456
Investment gains/ (losses) 3,831 (248) 1,078 8,413
Other operating income, net 2,546 2,142 1,365 713
Total 16,921 15,623 19,752 20,935

Norte: Net gains of RMB7.154 billion on the disposal of BOCHK shares were included in Other operating income in year 2003.

The Group reported non-interest income of RMB16.921 billion, an increase of RMB1.298 billion
(8.31%) compared to the prior year. Non-interest income accounted for 12.29% of total operating
income, down 1.17 percentage points. Excluding the impact of translation losses related to the
Group’s net foreign currency exposure, this ratio was 18.14%, an increase of 1.27 percentage points.

Net fee and commission income

Through its global network, the Group provides its customers with a variety of fee-based products,
including agency services, settlement and clearing, credit commitment, bank cards, fiduciary and
other custodian services. The Group improved its product mix, not only to generate consistent revenue
growth, but also to deepen and strengthen its client relationships by providing more diversified
financial services to address a more diverse set of customer needs.

The Group earned net fee and commission income of RMB14.323 billion in 2006, an increase of
RMBS5.076 billion (54.89%) compared to the prior year.

During 2006, the Group launched a three-year plan to further develop and enhance its fee based
services, in order to leverage its competitive advantage and reinforce its leading position in the
domestic market. The key elements of this plan include: enhancement of the management and
organization structure and deployment of adequate resources to more effectively support the delivery
of fee-based products and services, principally through objective-based performance evaluation and
remuneration, a reinvigorated focus on new product development, with particular emphasis on the
areas of international and trade finance, wealth management products, services for Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investors, and bank cards, improvement of communications among various business and
functional departments, including product management departments and the front line departments,
domestic and overseas operations, commercial banking, investment banking and insurance operations,
to promote efficient service and cross-selling; further strengthening of pricing strategy including
revision and broadening of new fee based services.

Ner trading (losses)/gains

RMB Million

2006 2005 2004 2003

Net (losses)/gains from foreign exchange and foreign

exchange products (2,204) 2,518 5,069 8,309
Net (losses)/gains from interest rate and other instruments (1,575) 1,964 3,683 (3,853)
Total (3,779 4,482 8.752 4,456
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toreign exchange and foreign exchange products related to the continued appreciation of the RMB and
revaluation losses arising from equity linked derivatives.

Net gains/losses from foreign exchange and foreign exchange products

The Group recognized net losses of RMB2.204 billion from foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products during 2006. This loss reflects the net results of gains from foreign exchange transactions and
losses from revaluation of foreign currency positions.

Gains from foreign exchange transactions

The volume of the Group’s foreign exchange transactions grew steadily during the year, resulting in a
gain of RMB7.616 billion. Domestically, the spread income derived from RMB/foreign exchange
transactions amounted to RMB5.938 billion, an increase of RMB1.077 billion (22.16%) compared to
the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase of the spread earned on RMBY/
foreign currency transactions compared to 2005.

Losses from revaluation of foreign currency positions

The Group reported a net loss of RMB9.82 billion which was attributable to its revaluation of its net
foreign exchange positions in 2006. The composition of the Group's foreign exchange positions as of
31 December 2006 and the related revaluation gains and losses for the year are set out in the following

table:
Net foreign currency position as Net gains/losses arising from
at the net foreign currency
31 December 2006% position reported in 2006%
Amount in USD Million Amount in RMB Million
On Off On Off
Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Sheet Total Sheet Sheet Total
1. Net foreign currency position
relating to Huijin option
(1) Foreign exchange option
with Hutjin — (18,000) 1,949
(2) Foreign currency capital — (2,758)
injected economically
hedged by the Huijin option 18,000 — (4,707)

2. Net foreign currency position
relating to swap agreements
(1) Spot transactions under
foreign currency swap
agreements 41,528 —_ (6,730) — (4,508)
(2) Forward transactions under
foreign currency swap

agreements — (41,528) — 2,222
3. Structural <gosition in foreign
operations 14,146 14,146 _

4. Other foreign currency position 11,627 4,109 15,736 (2,773) 219 (2,554)
Total 85,301 (55,419) 29,882  (14,210) 4,390 (9,820}
Less: structural %osition in foreign

operations (14,146)
Net foreign currency position 15,736
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The

respectively.

Gain and loss of revaluation and retranslation are representing by positive and negative figures,
respectively.

Translation losses related to the structural position of the Group’s foreign operations are
recognized as “Currency translation differences”, a separate component of equity, which does
not affect the consolidated profit and loss of the Group.

following explains the key components presented in the above table:
Net foreign currency position relating to Huijin option

On 5 January 2003, the Bank entered into an option agreement with Huijin (“Huijin option”), to
economically hedge a portion of its net foreign currency position arising from the foreign
currency capital injection by Huijin. According to the terms of the agreement, the Bank acquired
options to sell to Huijin USD, totaling USDI18 billion, in tranches of no more than USD1.5 billion
each at the beginning of each calendar month from 1 January to 31 December 2007 at a fixed
exchange rate of USD1 to RMB8.2769. The related option premium of RMB4.469 billion is
payable by the Bank to Huijin in 12 equal monthly installments beginning from 1 January 2007.
The gain from the change in the fair value of the Huijin option for 2006 amounted to RMB1.949
billion, which partially offset the RMB4.707 billion foreign exchange revaluation loss of the
related on-balance sheet foreign currency exposure.

Net foreign currency position relating to swap agreements

Considering the surplus liquidity in the RMB capital markets, the lack of investment alternatives,
and the favorable interest yields of foreign currency denominated financial assets, the Bank
entered into a series of USD/RMB swap transactions to increase its income through investment in
additional USD denominated financial assets. Under these agreements, the Bank bought USD in
spot transactions and invested the funds in financial assets denominated in foreign currency to
benefit from the favorable interest differentials, and bought back the RMB in the future at agreed
exchange rates to effectively mitigate the Group’s foreign currency risks. The swap transactions
had no impact on the Group’s net foreign currency position. As of 31 December 2006, the
outstanding notional amount of these transactions amounted to USD41.5 billion.

In 2006, the foreign exchange revaluation loss related to the USD currency positions through
these spot transactions was RMB6.730 billion, partially offset by the revaluation gain of
RMB2.222 billion on the forward sales of USD. This net loss of RMB4.508 billion was reported
as a component of “Net trading (losses)/gains”, contributing to the significant decrease in 2006.
The beneficial effect of the favorable rate differential on USD financial assets, however, was
reported as a component of “Net interest income”™.

Other foreign currency positions

As of 31 December 2006, other net foreign currency position of the Group amounted to USD135.7
billion which included a USD11.6 billion on-balance sheet position and a USD4.1 billion off-
balance sheet position. The on-balance sheet position comprised primarily the unhedged portion
of foreign currency capital contribution, foreign currency profits, foreign currency position
retained for daily operation purposes.

During 2006, the foreign currency proceeds from the IPO and the foreign currency profits
increased the Group’s foreign currency position. However, the Bank sold approximately USD26.3
billion to the PBOC following the approval from the relevant authorities. As a result, the Group
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billion at 31 December 2006. In 2006, the net loss arising from this other net foreign currency
position recognized was RMB2.554 billion, which was lower than that in 2005.

The Group will continue to actively manage its net foreign currency position in 2007 and the net
foreign currency exposure will continue to decrease.

Cost/benefits discussion

The Bank realized a foreign currency revaluation loss of RMB9.820 billion from its foreign currency
position during 2006. However, it has benefited from the favorable interest differentials between
foreign currency and RMB financial assets discussed above. By way of example, the average yield of
our foreign currency denominated debt securities was 4.75%, which was higher than the average yield
of 2.35% for RMB denominated debt securities, leading to a difference in yield of 2.40%.
Management believes that the benefits from favorable interest differentials were greater than the
foreign exchange revaluation loss aforesaid.

Net gains/losses from interest rate and other instruments

Net trading income from interest rate and other instruments comprised primarily gains/losses from
disposal and changes in the fair value of trading securities, changes in fair value of interest rate
derivatives and equity linked derivatives. In 2006, the Group reported a net gain of RMB0.492 billion
from trading in interest rate instruments. However, the equity linked derivatives and others reported a
net loss of RMB2.067 billion, which was mainly attributable to Bank of China International Holdings
Limited (BOCI). BOCI had operations in trading equity securities and in this connection, it has
established economic hedges using derivative instruments for its trading in equity investment. The
gain and loss arising from dealing in equity and fair value changes of equity investment held for
trading are recognized in investment gain/losses.

Investment gains/{losses)

The Group reported an investment gain of RMB3.831 billion in 2006, representing an increase of
RMB4.079 billion compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily due to: a gain of RMB2.3
billion on trading investment valuation and transactions reported by BOC International (the associated
loss on hedging derivatives was reported in “Net trading (losses)/gains” in the income statement), an
increased gain of approximately RMB1.1 billion on disposal of Zhuhai Nantong Bank and some other
investment project, and an increased gain of approximately RMBO0.5 billion from investment in
associates under the equity method of accounting.

Other operating income, net

Other operating income and expenses comprise mainly of insurance premiums and claim expenses.
Insurance premiums reported an increased of RMB2.471 billion in 2006 (47.18%) compared to the
prior year. As the life insurance business grew rapidly in 2006, the provision for insurance claims set
aside increased accordingly. As a result, insurance claim expenses rose 93.84% or RMB3.623 billion
at the same time.

Other operating income included gains on disposal of debt to equity swap amounting to RMB1.309
billion and gains on disposal of loans to third party amounting to RMB0.660 billion.

Operating and administrative expenses

The Group’s operating and administrative expenses increased 17.56% or RMBS8.010 billion to
RMB53.614 billion compared to the prior year.

Staff costs rose to RMB30.677 billion in 2006 by RMB6.698 billion (27.93%) compared to the prior
year. The increase in staff costs was mainly attributable to: an increase in domestic salary levels
through the implementation of the new domestic Salary System in 2006, which assigned salary levels
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increases for government mandated contributions, based on employee salary levels, to various
employee welfare programs, labor union, and training initiatives which accounted for 14%, 2%, and
1.5% respectively of the staff salary costs have also increased, increases in retirement costs related to
contribution to the Group’s defined contribution plan for domestic employees.

General operating and administrative expenses mainly comprised postal fee, marketing fee, utility fee,
printing expenses, maintenance fee, offices, regulatory expenses and other professional fees. The
general operating and administrative expenses were RMB17.283 billion, an increase of RMB1.541
billion (9.79%) compared to the prior year, consistent with the growth in the Group’s business
activities. These expenses also included regulatory fees of RMB0.992 billion paid to the China
Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC), which increased RMBO0.066 billion compared to the prior
year.

During 2006, the Group intensified its focus on cost control and management and the growth in
operating income outpaced that of the general operating and administrative expenses. In 2006, the cost
1o income ratio was 38.96% in 2006, down 0.34 percentage points compared to the prior year,
indicating an improvement in the operating efficiency.

Impairment losses

Unir: RMB million
2006 2005 2004 2003

Provision for loan losses 11,687 10,888 22,793 14,701
Provision for impairment of foreclosed assets 85 133 2,997 2,019
(Write-back of)/Provison for impairment of other receivables {211) 498  (2,216) 178
Provision/(Write-back of) for impairment of fixed assets and

others 26 (534) 223 (466)

Total 11,587 10,985 23,797 _16,432

Non-performing loan and non-performing loan ratio decreased simultaneously in 2006, reflecting the
improved credit quality of loans and advances. The Group continued to adopt a prudent loan
provisioning policy. Impairment losses on loans and advances amounted to RMB11.687 billion in
2006, representing an increase of RMB0.799 billion compared to the prior year. In 2006, the credit
cost was 0.50% of total loans, almost the same level as the prior year.

Income tax

In 2006, the Group’s income tax expense was RMB19.857 billion, representing a decrease of
RMB2.686 billion (11.92%) compared to the prior year. The effective tax rate was 29.63%,
representing a decrease of 11.25 percentage points compared to the prior year. The decrease in the
effective tax rate was mainly due to the fact that pursuant to Cai Shui [2007] No. 40 “Notice to Bank
of China Limited on the Deductible Criterion relating to Salary Expenses” issued by the Ministry of
Finance and State Administration of Taxation, the Group has obtained the approval for deduction of
RMB15.669 billion of its domestic salary costs when determining the Group’s 2006 taxable income,
resulting in a decrease in tax expenses of RMB4.6 billion for 2006.
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At the end of 2006, the Group’s total assets were RMB5,325.273 billion, an increase of RMB582.467
billion (12.28%) compared to the prior year-end, and total liabilities were RMB4,907.459 billion, an
increase of RMB427.273 billion (9.54%) compared to prior year-end.

Loans

Loan was a key component of the Group’s assets. At the end of 2006, the Group had a total loan
portfolio of RMB2,431.806 billion, an increase of RMB196.760 billion (8.80%) compared to the prior
year-end.

The quality of the Group’s loan portfolio continued to improve during the year, with loans classified
as special mention decreasing significantly, resulting in an increase in the percentage of higher quality
loans. The Group also continued to rebalance the mix of the loan portfolio to achieve higher yields by
reducing the proportion of lower yielding trade bills in the loan portfolio.

Corporate loans and Personal loans
Unit: RMB million

2006 2005 2004 2003
Group Balance %  Balance %  Balance %  Balance %

Corporate loans 1,849,062 76.04% 1,712,043 76.60% 1,652,421 76.98% 1,774,080 82.23%
Personal loans 582,744 _ 23.96% _ 523,003 _23.40% _ 494,041 _23.02% _ 383,393 _17.77%

Total 2,431,806 _100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00% 2,157,473 100.00%

Accrual and Non-accrual loans and advances

When either the principal or the interest receivable relating to loans becomes overdue for more than
90 days, such loans are classified as non-accrual loans. All other loans are classified as accrual loans.

Unit: RMB million

2006 2005 2004 2003
Group Balance %  Balance %  Balance %  Balance %

Accrual loans
and advances 2,354,814 96.83% 2,158,232 96.56% 2,091,360 97.43% 1,863,714 86.38%

Non-accrual

loans and
advances 76,992 3.17% 76,814 3.44% 55,102 2.57% 293,759 13.62%
Total 2,431,806 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00% 2,157,473 100.00%
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The Group held debt securities totaling RMB1,879.418 billion at the end of 2006, an increase of
RMB209.827 billion (12.57%) compared to the prior year-end. There was no significant impairment in
the debt securities. The classification of the Group’s debt securities portfolio at 31 December 2006 is

as follows:
Unit: RMB million
2006 2005 2004 2003
Group Balance %  Balance %  Balance %  Balance %
Trading and
other debt
securities at
fair value
through profit
or loss 110,634 588% 107,271 6.42% 91,012 6.95% 114,557 10.49%

Available-for-

sale securities 807,308 42.96% 593,010 35.53% 346,532 26.46% 410,140 37.55%
Held-to-

maturity

securities, net 461,140 24.54% 607,459 36.38% 457,994 3498% 215,175 19.70%
Securities

classified as

loans and

receivables,

net 500.336 26.62% 361,851 21.67% 413,941 31.61% 352,315 32.26%

Total 1,879.418 100.00% 1,669,591 100.00% 1,309,479 100.00% 1,092,187 100.00%

—_ =

The percentage of debt securities classified as available-for-sale and as loans and receivables both
increased during the year, while the percentage classified as held-to-maturity securities declined
significantly. The percentage of trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss
maintained at similar level as prior year. The change in the classification mix of the debt securities
portfolio principally related to the re-investment of funds received on the maturity of securities
classified as held-to-maturity, into those classified as available-for-sale. Similarly, the Group
increased its investment in securities with a shorter tenor, such as PBOC bills and commercial papers
denominated in foreign currency. These changes provided the Group with more flexibility in
managing its portfolio to achieve higher yields. As a result, the percentage of securities classified as
loans and receivable increased.
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Unit: RMB million

2006 2005 2004 2003
Group Balance %  Balance %  Balance %  Balance %

Government

bonds and

government

guaranteed

bonds 817,643 43.50% 794,413 47.58% 590,932 45.12% 430,903 39.43%
Financial

institution

bonds 610,738 32.50% 475,878 28.50% 359,503 27.45% 318,744 29.17%
Public sector

and quasi

government

bonds 263,333 14.01% 263,007 15.75% 274,983 21.00% 275,178 25.18%
Corporate bonds ___ 187,856 9.99% 136,449 8.17% 84,253 6.43% 67,944 6.22%

Sub-total 1,879,570 _100.00% 1.669.747 100.00% 1,309,671 100.00% 1,092,769 100.00%

Allowance for

impatrment
losses 152 (156) (192) (582) - -
Total 1,879,418 1,669,591 1,309,479 1,092,187

Deposits from customers

The Group’s deposits from customers totaled RMB4,095.422 billion at the end of 2006,an increase of
RMB391.645 billion (10.57%) compared to the prior year-end. Of this increase, corporate and
personal deposits increased by RMB180.952 billion and RMB193.235 billion, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the principal components of the Group’s customer deposits by customer
type:
Unit: RMB million

2006 2005 2004 2003

Group Balance o Balance % Balance % Balance %o

Corporate deposits
— Demand deposit 979,653 23.92% 836,763 22.59% 776,648 23.24% 679,524 22.38%
— Time deposit

less than one

year 514,564 12.56% 486,681 13.14% 373,467 11.17% 312,585 10.30%

— Time deposit
over one year 36,496 0.89% 26,317 0.71% 32,743 0.98% 20,182 0.66%
Sub-total 1,530,713 37.38% 1,349,761 36.44% 1.182.858 35.39% 1.012.291 33.34%

Personal deposits

— Demand deposit 770,583 18.82% 667,957 18.03% 697,028 20.85% 607,904 20.02%
— Time deposit
less than one
year 1,302,266 31.80% 1,243,964 33.59% 1,059,284 31.69% 1,066,069 35.11%
— Time deposit
over one year 346,010 8.45% 313,703 8.47% 206.246 8.86% 260,874 8.59%
Sub-total 2,418,859 59.06% 2,225,624 60.09% 2.052.558 61.41% 1.934.847 63.73%

Securities and margin
deposits 145,850 3.56% 128,392 147% 107,061 3.20% 38,818 2.93%

Total

4,095,422 100.00% 3,703,777 100.00% 3.342,477 100.00% 3,035,956 100.00%

During 2006, the Group continued to proactively manage its liability mix, while maintaining stable
growth of deposits. In this regard, the proportion of generally low-interest bearing demand deposits,
both corporate and personal, increased by 2.01 percentage points and 1.85 percentage points during
the year.

Equity

The Bank substantially increased its capital base in recent years through, among other things, the
capital contribution from Huijin at the end of 2003, the sale of equity to strategic investors during
2005, and the IPO in 2006. At the end of 2006, the Group’s total shareholders’ equity was
RMB388.254 billion, representing an increase of RMB154.412 billion (66.03%) over the prior year-
end. This increase was comprised of the following significant elements.

(1) On 13 March 2006, the Bank issued about 8.514 billion ordinary shares of par value of RMB1.00
each to National Council for Social Security Fund at a premium. The share premium (net of share
issuance costs) of RMB1.481 billion was recognized in the capital reserve;

(2) On 1 June 2006 and 9 June 2006, the Bank issued about 29.404 billion H-shares of par value of
RMB1.00 each through a global offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors at a premium. The
share premium (net of share issuance costs) of RMB358.128 billion was recognized in the capital
reserve;

(3) On 29 June 2006, the Bank issued 6.494 billion A-shares of par value of RMB1.00 each through
an initial public offering to the domestic investors at a premium. The share premium (net of share
issuance costs) of RMB12.958 billion was recognized in the capital reserve;

25




Segment Reporting by Geography

The Group conducts its business activities in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong and Macau and other
overseas locations. The geographical analysis of profit attributable to our business activities, along
with information on the related assets and liabilities, in these three geographic areas are set forth in the
following table:

Unit: RMB million

Other overseas

Chinese mainland Hong Kong & Macau regions Eliminations Group
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Total assets 4,291,241 3.803.989 1,078,863 966.225 214,735 186.982 (259,566) (214.390) 5,325,273 4,742,806
Total liabilities 3915907 3.584.086 978,465 871,046 204,673 178,853  (191,586) (153.79%) 4,907,459 4,480,186
Net interest income 100,910 82.687 17,980 16,027 1,813 1.691 4 — 120,707 100,405
Non-interest income 6,215 7,132 10,483 7.224 827 1,267 (604) — 16,921 15,623
Operating and
administrative
expenses (43,139) (36.600) {9,070} (7.287 (1,465) (1.717 60 —  (53,614) (45,604)
Operating profit 57,619 47.627 19,330 15.904 1,143 1,213 (540) — 77,552 64,744
Impairment losses (14,923) (15.404) 3,106 3.869 230 550 — —  (1.,587) (10,98%)
Profit before tax 42,672 32,752 23,395 20.450 1,482 1,938 (540) — 67,009 55,140
Income tax (16,353)  (19.409) (3,404) {2.814) (290) 320) 150 — (19,857 (22.543)
Minority interests (9) (5) (5,251) (5.100) —_— — — — (5,260 (5,105)
Net profit . 26,310 13.338 14,740 12,536 1,192 1,618 (350) — 41,892 27.492

The Chinese mainland continues to be the Group’s largest geographic business segment. At the end of
year 2006, the total assets of this segment (before inter-company eliminations) were RMB4,291.241
billion, an increase of RMB487.252 billion (12.81%) compared to the prior year-end, accounting for
76.84% of the Group’s total assets (before inter-company eliminations), an increase of 0.10
percentage points compared to the prior year-end. In 2006, this segment had operating profit (before
inter-company eliminations) of RMB57.619 billion, an increase of RMB9.992 billion (20.98%)
compared to the prior year-end, accounting for 73.78% of the Group’s total operating profit (before
inter-company eliminations). Meanwhile, this region realized net profit (before inter-company
elimination) of RMB26.31 billion, representing an increase of RMBI12.972 billion or 97.26%
compared to the prior year-end, accounting for 62.28% of the Group’s net profit (before inter-
company eliminations). This segment has been increasingly important for the Group as a source of
revenue and profit growth. The Group has an extensive domestic branch network, providing traditional
retail and corporate banking services. The Group also provides both RMB and foreign currency
banking services. With respect to the latter, the Group continues to maintain a distinct advantage over
its competitors by virtue of its unique position in the foreign currency business.

The Hong Kong and Macau segment is also-an important one for the Group. At.the end of 2006, total
assets of this segment (before inter-company eliminations) was RMB1,078.863 billion, an increase of
RMB112.638 billion (11.66%) compared to the prior year-end, accounting for 19.32% of the Group’s
total assets (before inter-company eliminations), a decrease of 0.17 percentage points compared to the
prior year-end. In 2006, this segment had operating profit (before inter-company eliminations) of
RMB19.33 billion, an increase of RMB3.426 billion (21.54%) compared to the prior year, accounting
for 24.75% of the Group’s operating profit {(before inter-company eliminations). Meanwhile, this
segment achieved a net profit (before inter-company elimination) of RMB14.74 billion, representing
an increase of RMB2.204 billion (17.58%) compared to the prior year, accounting for 34.89% of the
group’s net profit (before inter-company eliminations). Apart from traditional commercial banking
activities, the Group also has subsidiaries operating insurance and investment banking businesses in




Group Investment Limited. The continued development of these businesses is essential to the
successful implementation of the Group’s plan to develop a universal banking platform.

The Group has also established a substantial overseas network, with operations in Europe, North
America, South America, Africa and other Asia-Pacific regions. At the end of year 2006, the total
aggregate assets of these regions (before inter-company eliminations) was RMB214.735 billion, an
increase of RMB27.753 billion (14.84%) compared to the prior year-end, accounting for 3.84% of the
Group's total assets (before inter-company eliminations). These overseas operations had a operating
profit (before inter-company eliminations) of RMB1.143 billion and a net profit (before inter-
company eliminations) of RMB1.192, accounting for 1.46% and 2.82% of the Group’s operating profit
and net profit (before inter-company eliminations) respectively.

Other Financial Information

Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS Financial Information

Net profit
Net assets for the year ended
31 December 31 December

2006 2005 2006 2005

PRC GAAP figures 388,254 233,842 41,892 27,492

Adjustments for accounting standard differences:
— Reversal of revaluation surplus and corresponding
depreciation‘! (7,693)  (7,999) 306 427
— Fair value measurement on investment properties'” 3,318 2,816 502 1,695
— Equity securities classified asavailable-for-sale financial
assets and measured at fair value®®

2,742 1,775 — —
— Early retirement benefit obligation*® (5,316) (5,097) (219) (2,627)
— Cost method applied on precious metals®’ {(791) (637) (154) (329)
— RMBS500 million start-up fund for Annuity Plan‘® — — —_ (500)
— Deferred tax and above item impactm 1,866 992 184 290
— Minority interests effect and others 537 727 319 (527)
Sub-total (8.337) (7.423) 938 (1,571)
IFRS figures 382,917 226,419 42,830 25,921

(1) Reversal of revaluation surplus and corresponding depreciation

Under PRC GAAP, the Bank recorded an asset revaluation adjustment of RMB10,432 million as
at 31 December 2003, related principally to property and equipment, in connection with the Joint
Stock Reform Plan. The revalued property and equipment will be amortised over their remaining
useful lives. According to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, once an entity has chosen the
cost model as its accounting policy, it shall apply the policy to an entire class of property, and
shall not be permitted to measure these fixed assets at fair value. Hence, the asset revaluation
surplus and corresponding depreciation recognised under PRC GAAP, should be reversed under
IFRS.

(2) Fair value measurement on investment properties
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(3)

4)

(3)

(6)

(7

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. According to 1AS 40 Investment Property,
investment properties are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date by the Group.

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at fair value

Under PRC GAAP, equity securities are accounted for at cost less impairment losses. According
to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, these securities have been
classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value.

Early retirement benefit obligation

According to MOF requirement, the early retirement benefit expenditures during the early
retirement period (from early retirement date to legal retirement date) to those employees who
accepted an early retirement arrangement is recognised on a cash basis by the Group. According
to IAS 19 Employee Benefits, the early retirement benefit at the balance sheet date should be
recorded based on the present value of future payment obligation after adjusting for actuarial gain
or loss and past servicing cost.

Cost method applied on precious metals

According to accounting practice of PRC banking industry, all precious metals are initially
recognised at cost and subsequently re-measured at fair value at the balance sheet date by the
Group. According to IAS 2 Inventories, precious metals that are not related to the Group’s
precious metals trading activities are carried at cost.

RMBS500 million start-up fund for annuity plan

BOC established an annuity plan to provide supplementary retirement benefits to its domestic
current employees. Huijin, the parent company, committed a start-up fund of RMB500 million for
the annuity plan in 2005. IFRS requires recording this amount in operating expenses and capital
Teserve.

Deferred tax and above item impact

Under IFRS, deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Under PRC GAAP, deferred income tax is
provided using the liability method, on timing differences between the Group’s taxable profits
and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses
in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial
statements.

The difference between PRC GAAP and IFRS in 2006 mainly represents the deferred income tax
credited or charged directly to equity under IFRS relating to the fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments charged or credited directly to equity.

Reconciliation of Shareholders’ equity between CAS 2006 and present PRC GAAP

In February 2006, the MOF issued 39 new Accounting Standards for Enterprises as part of the PRC
government’s initiative to converge the PRC GAAP with International Financial Reporting Standards.
These new standards, which are mandatory for all listed companies and optional for others, are
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2007

The Group has adopted the New CAS from 1 January 2007 and has prepared this Reconciliation
pursuant to the requirements of the “Notice of Disclosure of Relevant financial information under the
New CAS” (Zheng Jian Fa [2006] No. 136) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission
and the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 38 — First-Time Adoption of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises™ which set forth the analysis of the key impacts of the
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are required to the Group’s shareholders’ equity as at 1 January 2007 on the adoption of the New CAS,
based on the consolidated financial statements of Group for the year ended 31 December 2006.

The Bank was listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange in June 2006 and prepares consolidated financial
statements for the Bank and its subsidiaries under International Financial Reporting Standards
(*IFRS”). In order to minimize the differences between the Group’s consolidated financial statements
prepared under the IFRS and the New CAS, the Group has adopted the Opinion No. 1 on the
implementation of the new CAS issued by the Expert Task Force of the MOF on 1 February 2007 and
put through appropriate retrospective adjustments to the shareholders’ equity as at 1 January 2007 as
permitted under this Expert Task Force opinion, in addition to those allowed under the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 38 — First-time Adoption of Accounting Standards for
- Business Enterprises.

Effective 1 January 2007, the Group has adopted the *“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”
issued on 15 February 2006 by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) hereinafter referred to as (the “New
CAS”). The Group will continue to assess the impacts of the adoption of the New CAS on its financial
positions, operating results and cash flows. The reconciliation of Group’s consolidated shareholders’
equity as at 1 January 2007 prepared under the existing applicable standards and that prepared under
the New CAS (hereinafter referred to as “the Reconciliation™) may be subject to adjustments from
further interpretations that might be issued by the MOF and our due consideration of the related
implications to the Group’s application of these policies. Consequently, the amount of consolidated
shareholders’ equity as at 1 January 2007 presented in this Reconciliation might be different from that
to be disclosed in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2007.
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Description Amount Note

Consolidated shareholders’ equity (under the relevant accounting

standards applicable prior to 1 January 2007) 388,254 1
Retrospective Adjustments on adoption of the New CAS:
Fair value measurement on investment properties 3,318 2
Early retirement benefit obligations (5,316) 3
Equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets and measured c

at fair value 2,550 4
Cost method applied on precious metals (791) 5
Deferred tax impact (including those on the above items) (286) 6
Others 36
Sub-total : (489)
Balance of Minority Interest 29,560 7
Consolidated shareholders’ equity (under the New CAS) 417,325

Notes to the reconciliation:

1 This amount of sharcholders’ equity as presented in the Reconciliation is extracted from the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises,
the Accounting System for Financial Institutions. and other relevant accounting regulations as applicable to the Group for the said
period (“former PRC GAAP™). The above financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 were audited by PwC and
“Report of Auditors™ (PwC ZT SZ [2007] No. 10826) and an unqualified opinion was issued on 22 March 2007,

2 Under the former PRC GAAP. investment properties were treated as fixed assets and were measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. In accordance with the New CAS. Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 3 —
Investment Property, investment properties are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date.

3 According to the MOF requirement, the early retirement benefit expenditures during the early retirement period (from early
retirement date to legal retirement date) to those employces who accepted an early retirement arrangement was recognized on a
cash basis by the Group. According to the New CAS. Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 9 — Emplovee Benefits,
early retirement bencfits at the balance sheet date should be recorded based on the present value of future payment obligation after
adjusting for actuarial gain or loss and past servicing cost.

4 Under the former PRC GAAP, equity securities were accounted for at cost less allowance for impairment losses. According to the
New CAS, Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, these
securitics are classified as available-for-sale and stated at fair value,

5 According to accounting practice of PRC banking industry, all precious metals were initially recognized at cost and subsequently
re-measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. According to the New CAS, Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 2 — Inveniories, precious metals that are not related 1o the Group's precious metals trading activities are carried at cost.

6 Under the New CAS, deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Under the
former PRC GAAP, deferred income tax is provided using the liability method, on timing differences between the Group's taxable
profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

The differcnce between the New CAS and former PRC GAAP mainly represents the deferred income tax credited or charged
directly to equity under the New Accounting Standards relating to the fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments
charged or credited directly to equity.

This item also includes the deferred tax impact related to the aforesaid retrospective adjustments.

7 Minority interest balance is included as part of the shareholders’ equity under the new CAS. Under the former PRC GAAP,
minority interest was presented outside of the shareholders’ equity.

The above financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 were reviewed by PwC and an
unqualified reviewed opinion was issued on 22 March 2007.
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Based on the “Standards Concerning the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by
Companies Offering Securities to the Public (No. 2) — Contents and Formats of Annual Report
(Revision 2005) “(zhengjiangongsizi [2005] No. 141) promulgated by China Securities Regulatory

Commission

Primary Financial Items

Operating income

Profit before income tax

Net profit

Net profit after deducting the non-routine items
Net cash flow from operating activities

Total assets

Shareholder’s equity (excluding minority interests)

2006

242,192

67,009
41,892
39,822
27,908

End of
2006

5,325,273
388,254

2005

190,894
55,140
27,492
26,174
13,883

End of

2005

4,742,806
233,842

Unit: RMB million

Increase/
decrease 2004
51,298 155,446
11,869 34,576
14,400 20,932
13,648 20,310
14,280  (100,738)
Increase/
decrease End of
(%) 2004

12.28% 4,270,443
66.03% 205,351

Operating income = Interest income + Fee and commission income + Net trading (losses)/gains +

Investment gains/(losses) + Other operating income

Primary Financial Indicators

Earnings per share (RMB)

Return on equity (%)

Net profit (RMB million)

Return on equity (%) based on net profit after
deducting the non-routine items

Net cash flow from operating activities per share
(RMB)

Net assets per share (RMB)
Adjusted net assets per share (RMB)

Note: Earnings per share is diluted figure;

Note: Return on equity is diluted figure;

2006

0.17
10.79
41,892

10.26
0.11
End of
2006

1.53
1.52

2005
0.13
11.76
27,492
11.15

0.07

End of

2005
1.12
1.11

Note: Return on equity based on net profit after deducting the non-routine items is diluted figure;
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Increase/

decrease
(%) 2004
0.04 0.11
—0.97 10.19
14,400 20,932
-0.93 9.89
0.04 —0.54

Increase/
decrease End of
(%) 2004
36.61 1.10
36.94 1.09




6.2
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Based on the “Preparation Conventions of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities
to the Public No. 9 — the Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings Per
Share” (zhengjianfa [2001] No. 11} promulgated by China Securities Regulatory Commission

Profit for Earnings per share
period Return on equity (%) {RMB)

reported Weighted Weighted

Item (RMB million) Diluted average Diluted average

Profit from principal operations 77,552 1997%  24.28% 0.31 0.33

Operating profit 77,552 19.97% 24.28% 0.31 0.33

Net profit 41,892 10.79% 13.11% 0.17 0.18
Net profit after deducting the non-

routine items 39,822 10.26% 12.46% 0.16 0.17

Business Review

With an international network in 27 countries and regions, Bank of China’s business scope
encompasses three main business lines: commercial banking, investment banking and insurance. It has
established correspondent banking relationships with 1,500 banks having a total of 47,000 branches
worldwide. Through its global network and comprehensive range of services, the Bank has maintained
a competitive advantage in the domestic banking market.

The following table sets forth our operating profit attributable to each of our principal lines of
business for the periods indicated:

Unit: RMB million/except percentages

2006 2005 2004
Amount Proportion  Amount Proportion  Amount Proportion

Commercial banking 73,649 94.97 % 63,219 97.64% 56,243 97.24%
Investment banking 1,301 1.68 % 321 0.50% 324 0.56%
Insurance 539 0.70% 291 0.45% 302 0.52%
Others 1,418 1.83% (21) -0.03% 972 1.68%
Offset 645 0.82% 934 1.44% — 0.00%
Total 77,552 100.00% 64,744  100.00% 57,841 100.00%

6.2.1 Commercial Banking Business

Our commercial banking business comprises of three major lines of business: corporate banking
business, personal banking business and treasury operations, which are the traditional business of the
bank.
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indicated:

Unit: RMB million/except percentages

2006 compared
2006 2005 with 2005
Growth Growth
Amount Proportion  Amount Proportion Volume Ratio

Corporate banking business 43,313 58.81% 41,248  65.25% 2,065 5.00%
Personal banking business 17,694 24.02% 12,493 19.76% 5,201 41.63%
Treasury operations 12,642 17.17% 9.478 14.99% 3,164 33.38%
Total 73,649  100.00% 63,219  100.00% 10,430 16.50%

211 Corporate Banking Business

At the end of 2006, the pre-tax profit (before inter-company eliminations) of corporate banking was
RMB32.3 billion, an increase of 11.6% from the prior year-end. The pre-tax average ROA reached

1.87%.

Unit: RMB million

2006 compared

with 2005

Growth Growth
2006 2005 Volume Ratio
Net interest income 55,416 51,124 4,292 8.40%
Non-interest income 10,742 9,604 1,138 11.85%
Operating and administrative expenses -19,695 -16,468 —3,227 19.60%
Impairment (losses) / write-back ~11,166  -12,529 1,363 ~10.88%
Operating profit 43,313 41,248 2,065 5.01%
Profit before tax 32,298 28,941 3,357 11.60%
Segment assets 1,797,363 1,658,718 138,645 8.36%

§.2.12 Personal Banking Business

As of the end of 2006,the pre-tax profits (before inter-company eliminations) of personal banking
business was RMB17.35 billion, an year-on-year increase of 20.98% with the pre-tax ROA of 2.7%.

Unit: RMB million

2006 compared

with 2005

Growth  Growth

2006 2005  Volume Ratio

Net profit income 36,142 31,877 4,265 13.38%
Non-profit income 8,702 5,860 2,842 48.50%
Operating and administrative expenses -26,188  -24,330 —-1,858 7.64%
Impairment losses/write-back -369 1,434 -2,003 -139.68%
Operating profit 17,694 12,493 5,201 41.63%
Total profit 17,345 14,337 3,008 20.98%
Segment assets 687,592 603,891 83,701 13.86%
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In the year of 2006, the overall pre-tax profit (before inter-company eliminations) of the treasury
operation increased to RMB12.8 billion for the Group, an increase of 32.5% compared with the year of
2005, pre-tax average ROA reached 0.5%.

Unit: RMB million

2006 compared

with 2005

Growth  Growth

2006 2005 Volume Ratio

Net interest income 29,861 18,055 11,806 65.39%
Non-interest income -8,531 —2,296 6,235 271.56%
Business and Management Expense -6,398 —4,583 -1,815 39.60%
Impairment (Loss)/write-back 9 -5 14 -280%
Operating profit 12,642 9.478 3,164 33.38%
Total profit 12,774 9,642 3,132 32.48%
Segment assets 2,727,735 2,399,377 328,358 13.69%

6.2.14 Operations of BOCHK

The Group conducts commercial banking business in Hong Kong through its subsidiary Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited (“BOCHK"”). As a bank licensed in Hong Kong and with 65.87% of its shares
owned by the Group, BOCHK is the Group’s most significant overseas operation entity in terms of
assets and profit contributions. As of 31 December 2006, according to the statistics issued by Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, BOCHK’s total asset reached RMB922.77 billion. In 2006, BOCHK
achieved net profit of RMB9.115 billion (less minority interest). BOCHK (Holdings) Limited, which
was directly controlled by BOCHK, was listed on the Hong Kong Exchange Stock main board since
July 2002.

Capitalising on the vibrant economic growth and buoyant financial markets, in the year of 2006,
BOCHK delivered the highest operating profit before loan impairment allowances and profit
attributable to shareholders since its restructuring in 2001 disregard of the factor of foreign exchange
rate. Net interest income and net interest margin increased substantially. Non-interest income
registered steady growth, with outstanding performance in both the investment and insurance business.

Attribution of BOCHK to the Group’s net profit
Unit: million RMB/(except %)

31 Dec. 31 Dec. Growth
2006 2005 Volume/Ratio

Net profit 9,115 8,803 312
Proportion to the Group’s net profit 21.76%  32.02% -10.26%

Note: net profit after minority interests

In 2006, BOCHK actively developed its deposit business while controlling funding cost. To meet the
various demands of customers, BOCHK introduced product promotion to target segments, resulting in
an increase in low-interest and interest-free deposits, as well as a more optimized deposit portfolio.
With the emphasis on risk management and efficiency enhancement, BOCHK set up operation models
for SMEs development, streamlined the business flow and improved customer service efficiency, and
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balance. BOCHK remained as the leader in the loan syndication markets of mainland, Hong Kong and
i Macau, with a market share of 9.3%.

6.2.15 Risk Mangement
Risk management framework

The Risk Management framework of BOC is mainly composed of Board of Directors and the Risk
Policy Committee under the Board, Internal Control Committee, Anti-Money-Laundering Committee,
Asset-Liability Management Committee and Asset Disposal Committee under the senior management,
Risk Management Department, Credit Administration Department, Asset & Liability Department and
Law & Compliance Department. The Head Office manages the risks in branches through the vertical
management model, the risk in business departments through windows management model, and
monitors and controls the risks in subsidiaries by appointing certain members of the boards of
directors or risk management committees of the subsidiaries.

Loan concentration by borrower

We emphasize on the risk control of borrower concentration. We are currently in compliance with
regulatory requirements on borrower concentration.

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,

Main regulatory ratios Criteria 2006 2005 2004
Proportion of outstanding loans of largest single

borrowers (%) <10 2.2 4.7 3.4
Top ten customers ratio (%) <50 15.7 25.6 25.4

Note: Proportion of outstanding loans of largest single borrowers = Total outstanding loans to the largest single borrowers/net
regulatory capital

Top ten customers ratio = Total outstanding loans to the top ten customers/net regulatory capital
Loan Quality

As at the end of 2006, the outstanding special-mention loan was RMB198.15 billion, a drop of
RMB85.9 billion compared with the end of last year, and accounted for 8.15% of the total loan
portfolio with a 4.56 percentage points down from the end of last year.

Five-category loan classification of loans of the Group

Unit: RMB millionlexcept percentages

31 Dec. 2006 31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec, 2004 31 Dec. 2003

Balance  Proportion Balance Proportion Balance Proportion Balance Proportion
Pass 2,135,441 87.81% 1,847,772 82.67% 1.611,936 75.10% 1,491,281 69.12%
Special-mention 198,145 8.15% 284,048 12.71% 424,606 19.78% 314,968 14.60%
Substandard 39,390 1.62% 45,573 2.04% 61,289 2.86% 63,088 2.92%
Doubtful 44,100 181% 44,550 1.99% 32,931 1.53% 116,032 5.38%
Loss 14,730 0.61% 13,103 0.59% 15,700 0.73% 172,104 7.98%
Total 2,431,806 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00% _ 2,157,473 100.00%

NPL 98,220 4.04 % 103,226 4.62% 109,920 5.12% 351.224 16.28%




Unit: RMB millioniexcept percentages

31 Dec. 2006 31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec. 2004 31 Dec. 2003

Balance  Proportion Balance Proportion Balance Proportion Balance Proportion
Pass 1,703,695 85.69% 1.430,210 79.46% 1227414 70.77% 1,142,995 65.44%
Special-mention 188,604 9.49% 271,504 15.08% 408.571 23.56% 284,400 16.28%
Substandard 38,517 1.94% 44,056 2.45% 57.656 3.32% 56,160 3.21%
Doubtful 43,119 2.17% 42,852 2.38% 29.787 1L.72% 110,159 631%
Loss 14,186 0.71% 11.301 0.63% 10.874 0.63% 152,930 8.76%
Total 1,988,121 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00% _ 1,746.644 100.00%
NPL 95,822 4.82% 98,209 5.46% 98.317 5.67% 319,249 18.28%

Provision for Impairment Losses on Loans

The Bank assesses impairment losses timely and sufficiently in accordance with prudent and actual
principles. Provision for impairment losses on loans consists of two components, individually assessed
provision and collectively assessed provision.

Market Risk Management

Market Risk Management of the Trading Book The Bank is using one day time horizon and 95%
confidence to calculate the VaR for the domestic trading book. The chart below shows the VaR of the
domestic foreign exchange (not including investment book or banking book) trading book as of
31December 2006 and 2005:

Unit: RMB million

As of 31 Dec. 2006 As of 31 Dec. 2005
Period Period
end Average High Low end Average High Low
Interest rate risk 1.79 2.71 16.25 0.54 4,77 3.27 11.94 0.20
Risk of foreign
exchange rate 0.81 2.99 14.12 0.39 12.84 2.70 18.69 0.34
Fluctuation risk 0.13 0.79 6.19 0.07 (.36 0.80 2.54 0.04
Total volume of
market risk 2.07 5.64 19.15 0.86 15.06 5.10 18.86 0.69

Market Risk Management for the Banking Book Primary market risk for our banking book is
interest rate risk. Interest rate risk arises mainly from mismatches between the maturities or re-pricing
periods of the assets and liabilities of our banking book. We assess the interest rate risk of the banking
book primarily through gap analysis. Gap analysis measures the difference between the amount of
interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities that mature or must be re-priced within certain
periods. We also use the data generated by the gap analysis to perform sensitivity analysis and stress
testing, which provide us with guidance in adjusting the re-pricing period structure of the interest-
bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Meanwhile, we closely follow the local and foreign
currency interest rate trend and adjust the interest rates of local and foreign currency deposits and
loans in a timely manner to avoid the interest rate risk.
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investment guideline of the investment book annually based on the Market Risk Management Policy
and the Market Risk Limit approved by the Board (RPC). The investment guideline covers the market
risk limit, the size of the investment portfolios, authorized products, duration, issue concentration
limit and the minimum rating requirement, etc. business departments should strictly comply with the
investment guideline, and will be monitored and examined by the independent risk management team.
The Bank has been improving its risk management ability continuously. We manage market risk of
investment book mainly through monitoring VaR and PVBP and stress testing of investment portfolio
currently.

Risk of Exchange Rate The Bank’s management of exchange rate risk covers non-trading accounts
and trading accounts. Non-trading exchange rate risk mainly arises from asset-liability currency
mismaltch, foreign exchange capital, foreign currency profit and loss, and investment in overseas
subsidiaries. The Bank seeks to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk by matching the sources and
utilization of our funds on a currency-by-currency basis. In addition, we also manage and control
exchange risk through settlement or hedging transaction. Trading exchange rate risk mainly comes
from the foreign exchange transaction the Bank is engaged in. The Bank tries to control the foreign
exchange position within the limit required according to its risk tolerance and operating capability.

Liquidity Risk In 2006, the bank’s liquidity is sufficient in general with staggered deficient. In this
situation, we constantly improved our liquidity management ability, proactively managed our bank’s
liability structure, shortened the duration of bonds investment portfolio. We managed to maintain the
proper liquidity level to meet the normal business needs.

Regulatory indicators on liquidity At the end of 2006, all indicators related to the Bank’s liquidity
conditions met regulatory requirements as table below: (liquidity ratio is the indicator of the group;
loan/deposit ratio and the excess reserve ratio are the indicators of mainland China)

Regulatory 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.

Main regulatory ratios standard 2006 2005 2004
Liquidity ratio (%} RMB =25 37.7 48.9 353
Foreign Currency =225 64.1 87.4 78.6
Loan/deposit ratio (%) RMB =75 57.6 51.7 59.6
Foreign Currency <85 70.1 70.4 67.9
Excess reserve ratio (%) RMB 2.8 3.0 37
Foreign Currency 25.8 16.9 13.4

Note: Liquidity ratio = current assets/current liabilities; Liquidity ratio is calculated in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
People’s Bank of China and China Banking Regulatory Commission, and the financial data are based on the Accounling
Standard for Business Enterprises and the Accounting Systems for Financial Institutions.

Loan-to-deposit ratio = outstanding loans/outstanding deposits
Excess reserve ratio for RMB = (reserve excess the legal standard + cash)/(balance of deposits + remittance payables)

Excess reserve ratio for foreign currency = (reserve excess the legal standard + cash + due from banks + due from overseas sub-
branches and subsidiaries)/balance of deposits.

Capital Management The group calculates and discloses CAR level in line with Regulation
Governing Capital Adequacy of Commercial Banks, promulgated by CBRC on 23 February 2004
(CBRC Order Issuance No. [2004]2). Since 2005, the group calculates market risk capital in
accordance with the Notice of CBRC General Office on Release of Calculation Tables and Notes for
Market Risk Capital Requirements for Commercial Banks (Yinjianfa No. [2004]374). In 2006, the
group’s CAR level has risen significantly. One major reason is the increase in the group’s core capital
due to BOC’s IPOs on Hong Kong and Shanghai Markets. Another reason is that the group’s foreign
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the end of 2606, the group’s CAR level is i3.59%, up 3.17 percentage—points from the year end before
last; core CAR level is 11.44%, up 3.36 percentage points.

Capital Management in the Future We’ll streamline the process of capital management timely and
continuously so as to enhance its positive role in banking management. In order to strengthen our
capital base and provide which as support for sustainable growth of our business, we will stick with
effective capital adequacy ratio management, capital funding management and economic capital
allocation.

Funding Transfer Pricing Funds Transfer refers to all forms of internal fund trading among entities
(including the Head Office, domestic and overseas branches and subsidiaries) within the Bank. In
2005, the Bank adopted the concept and principle for management by Funds Transfer Pricing (FTP)
and started to explore the use of FTP as a means to optimize resources allocation, reduce operating
cost and increase returns.

6.0.1.6 Organizational Information, Human resources Management and Development

6.3
6.3.1

As of 31 December 2006, the Bank had 11,241 domestic and overseas branches and outlets, a
reduction of 405 from the beginning of 2006. There were 37 tier one branches, 283 tier two branches
and 10,277 outlets in domestic operation, and 643 branches, subsidiaries and representative offices in
overseas operation.

As the end of December 2006, the Bank had 232, 632 employees' (including 40,620 dispatch
contractors working in domestic institutions), of which 20,204 were local staff of overseas branches
and subsidiaries. In 2006, there were 7,278 retirees whose expense should be borne by the Bank.

' The number is caleulated according to the new 38 accounting standard issued by MOF in 2006

Outlook
Corporate banking business

In the year 2007, the Bank will continue to improve its service for customers. Some major measures
include: improve the service model for key customers; optimize business procedures of corporate
banking; strengthen coordination and cross-selling among the Head Office and the branches, both
domestic and in overseas markets, and across different business lines; encourage product innovation;
improve service model for small business. These efforts will help the Bank lay down a sound
foundation for future sustainable growth.

6.3.2 Personal banking business

In 2007, the Bank will base the personal banking business on a client-oriented tenet, striving to
improve business operations, perfect service model, optimize business process, develop and cultivate
stronger relationships with affluent customers, strengthen cross-selling and internal coordination,
promote products innovation, strengthen marketing and increase the core competitiveness of services
delivered by the outlets. The Bank will accelerate the innovation of personal finance for quicker
development and expansion of the personal banking business and wealth management through
deepening the cooperation with the overseas strategic investors on product, service and human
resources. The human resource strategic plan for personal banking business wiil be drawn up to
accelerate the forming of specialized teams and lay a solid foundation for sustainable development.

6.3.3 Financial markeis business

In the year of 2007, the macro economic environment and regulatory policies are expected to provide
ample room for development, while posing new challenges to the Bank’s financial market businesses.
It expects to face more market competition due to foreign banks’ advantages in technology,
experience and marketing measures. The Bank shall further expand its financial market business,
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currencies investment asset portfolio management, sufficiently take advantage of the cooperation with
strategic investors, follow the development trend of international banks and its comparative
competition advantages, so as to maintain the leading position in competition with other banks.

6.34 BOCHK

§7

7.1

7.2

In terms of strategic business development, BOCHK will continue to grow its market share in
traditional segments like corporate banking and retail banking. It will also further strengthen and
expand its business platform, enhance product innovation and manufacturing capabilities, and ride on
the synergy effect through collaboration with BOC to create sustainable satisfactory returns on equity
and to maximize value for shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Material Litigation and Arbitration

During the report period and except as disclosed herein, there was no matenial litigation and
arbitration that might have significant adverse impact on the operation of the Bank.

The Bank has been involved in certain litigation and arbitration cases in the ordinary course of
businesses. After consulting professional legal firms, the Management considers that these litigation
and arbitration cases will not have significant adverse impacts on the operation of the Bank.

Purchase and Sale, Acquisition of Asset

On 15 December 2006, the Bank completed its first post [PO overseas acquisition with the purchase of
Singapore Aircraft Leasing Enterprise (SALE) for USD965 million after several rounds of
international competitive biddings.

The selling shareholders are Singapore Airlines Limited (56.67%' held by Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited.) (35.5%), WestLB AG (35.5%), Apfarge Investment Pte. Ltd. (an investment
vehicle of Singapore government’s Special Investments Pte. Ltd.) (14.5%), and Seletar Investments
Pte. Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited) (14.5%).

On 31 December 2005, Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited indirectly held 5% shares of the Bank via
its wholly owned subsidiary, AFH. Its shareholding proportion declined to 4.805% after the NCSSF
completed its investment in the Bank on 13 March 2006. According to the register maintained by the
Bank pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the shares held by Temasek in the Bank accounted for
4.65% of the Bank’s total issued share capital on 31 December 2006. According to the opintons of the
Bank’s domestic and overseas legal advisors, the transaction did not constitute a connected transaction
of the Bank.

SALE has been profitable since its establishment in 1993. After-tax profit reached USD4.7 muillion,
USD35.2 million and USD34.7 million respectively in 2004-2006. It is a leading Asia-based aircraft
leasing company, with a fleet of modern Airbus and Boeing aircraft with almost 27 airlines in 20
countries worldwide. The acquisition price represents 1.8 times of SALE’s book value in September
2006, determined after taking into account its competitive aircraft order and purchase price and its
management teams and international platform being well recognized by the market.

' As of 30 May 2006, the share volume held by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited. in Singapore Airlines Limited derives from the
05/06 Annual report of Singapore Airlines Limited.




Related parties are those parties that have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control. The Group is subject to
the control of the State Council of the PRC government through Huijin.

1.3.1 Transactions with Huijin

(1)

(i1)

Foreign Currency Option Agreement

In 2005, the Bank entered into a foreign currency option agreement with Huijin to reduce its foreign
currency exposure and as at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the outstanding notional amount of the
foreign currency option agreement was USDI18 billion.

On 15 May 2006, a dividend of RMB1,375 million, relating to the year ended 31 December 2005, was
paid to Huijin, in accordance with the approval by the equity holders at a post-adjournment session of
the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2006.

(iii) In accordance with the resolution of the seventh Extraordinary Meeting of the Shareholder in 2005,

Huijin agreed to the appropriation of RMBS500 million of distributed dividends in 2004, as start-up
funding for the Bank’s new annuity plan.

(iv) Deposit
2006 2005
At 1 January 38,869 —
Deposits received during the year 288,128 42,972
Deposits repaid and other changes during the year (304,937) (4,103)
At 31 December 22,060 38,869

The Deposits from Huijin are under commercial terms and at market rates.

1.3.2 Transactions with other companies controlled by Huijin

Huijin aiso has controlling equity interests in certain other bank and non-bank entities in the PRC. The
Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of its business under
commercial terms and at market rates. These include trading assets, investment securities and money
market transactions.

The volume of such transactions for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 and the outstanding
balances with these companies as of 31 December 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Trading assets and investment securities

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Purchases during the year 1,207 1,499
Redemptions/sales during the year 1,804 1,218
2006 2005
Outstanding balance at 1 January 2,400 2,183
QOutstanding balance at 31 December 1,762 2,400
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Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Outstanding balance at 1 January 88 %94
Outstanding balance at 31 December 121 88

(iii) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Outstanding balance at 1 January 2,318 3,537
Outstanding balance at 31 December 1,662 2,318

(iv) Due to banks and other financial institutions

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Outstanding balance at 1 January 2,076 1,895
Outstanding balance at 31 December 1,971 2,076

(v} Placements from banks and other financial institutions

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Outstanding balance at 1 January 243 —
Outstanding balance at 31 December 106 243

7.3.3 Transactions with shareholders holding 5% or more ordinary shares

As at 31 December 2006, in addition to Huijin, the shareholder holding 5% or more ordinary shares of
the Bank is RBS China Investments S.a.r.l.. The Bank has no significant transactions with this
shareholder in 2006 and has no material balances with this shareholder as at 31 December 2006.

7.3.4 Transactions with associates/joint venture

The Group enters into banking transactions with associates and joint ventures in the normal course of
business under commercial terms and at market rates. These include loans and advances, deposit
taking and such other normal banking businesses. The outstanding balances with associates and joint
ventures and related allowance for impairment losses as of the respective year end dates, and the
volume of transactions for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 are stated below. The related
interest income and expense amounts are not considered significant.
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2006 2005

Outstanding balance as at 1 January 7,240 1,246
Granted during the year 381 8,128
Repaid during the year {6,616) (989)
Written off and other changes during the year (191) (1,145)
Outstanding balance as at 31 December 814 7,240
Allowance for impairment losses (18) (119)

(ii) Deposits

2006 2005
Outstanding balance as at 1 January 856 1,227
Received during the year 6,498 3,879
Repaid and other changes during the year (4,065) (4,250)
Outstanding balance as at 31 December 3,289 856

(1ii) Debt securities issued by associates

2006 2005
Outstanding balance as at 1 January 188 —
Purchases during the year —_ 1,307
Redemption/sales during the year (188) (1,123)
Fair value changes and others — 4
Outstanding balance as at 1 December — 188

7.4 Major Contracts and the Performance thereof

During the report period and except as disclosed, the Bank did not take custody of or sub-contract the
operation or lease any material business assets from third parties or allowed its material business
assets being subject to such arrangements. No material cash assets of the Bank were entrusted to
others for management.

The guarantee business ts one of our off-balance items in the ordinary course of our business. We
carry out guarantee business in a prudent manner, and adopt credit risk management approach. During
the report period, the Bank or (to the Bank’s best knowledge) shareholders holding 5% or more shares
in the Bank have not made undertakings that might have significant adverse impact on the operational
results and financial position of the Bank.
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8.4

and Foreign Enterpris_es

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress enacted the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law.
The enterprise income tax rate the Bank applied to will decline from 33% to 25% taking effect from
2008. The Bank will benefit from the reduction of tax rate prospectively from 2008. Meanwhile, the
Bank will adjust the deferred income taxes according to the new tax rate.

OTHER INFORMATION

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Bank’s Shares
The Bank issued 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares to NCSSF on 13 March 2006.

The Bank issued 25,568,590,000 H shares in the initial public offering and was listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 1 June 2006. 3,835,288,000 H shares were further issued pursuant to the
exercise of over allotment option on 9 June 2006.

The Bank issued 6,493,506,000 A shares on 29 June 2006, and the Bank was listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006.

As at 31 December 2006, 50 million of the Bank were held as treasury shares.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank has adopted incremental measures to enable it to observe the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“the Code™) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Listing Rules”). The Bank has
complied with the code provisions, and has substantially complied with the recommended best
practices set out in the Code.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules to govern securities transactions by Directors and
Supervisors. The Bank has made specific enquiry of all Directors and Supervisors, and the Directors
and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the said
Model Code throughout the year in 2006.

Final Dividend

The Board has recommended a final dividend of RMBO0.04 per share, amounting to approximately
RMB10.154 billion, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 14 June 2007. If approved, detail arrangement of the final dividend
distribution (including the closure of H Share Register of Members; the record date to determine H
Share and A Share shareholders’ entitlement to the final dividend) for each of A Share and H Share
will be announced after the Annual General Meeting separately.

The 2006 final dividend of the Bank will be denominated and declared in RMB. Dividend for A Share
shareholders will be paid in RMB and dividend for H Share shareholders will be paid in Hong Kong
dollars. RMB will be converted into Hong Kong dollars based on the average exchange rate prevailing
one week before 14 June 2007 (such day inclusive), being the date of holding the Bank’s Annual
General Meeting, as announced by the People’s Bank of China for such conversion.
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Shareholders

The Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held at 3:00 p.m. on Thursdéy, 14 June 2007 at
Central Garden Hotel, No. 18 Gaolianggiaoxiejie, Xizhimenwai Ave., Hai Dian District, Beijing,
China. The H share Register of Members of the Bank will be closed, for the purpose of determining H
share shareholders’ entitlement to attend the Annual General Meeting, from Wednesday, 16 May 2007
to Thursday, 14 June 2007 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to attend the Annual General Meeting, H share shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Bank’s H
Share Registrar. Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15
May 2007.

There is no book closure period for A share Register of Members. A notice of Annual General Meeting
setting out the record date for the meeting and related issues will be published in due course.

Publication for Results Annoucement and Annual report

This results announcement is published on the websites of the Shanghai Stock Exchange at
www.sse.com.cn and the Bank at www.boc.cn. The 2006 Annual report (non printed version) prepared
under the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) is also available on the website of the
Bank at www.boc.cn. The 2006 Annual Report (printed version) prepared under IFRS will be
available at the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Bank’s websites in late April 2007 and
will be delivered to H Share shareholders of the Bank in late April 2007. The Annual Report prepared
in accordance with PRC GAAP and the announcement will also be available at the same time on the
websites of Shanghai Stock Exchange at www.sse.com.cn and the Bank at www.boc.cn.

Review of 2006 Annual Result

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Annual Report of the Bank. The Bank’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited has audited 2006 financial
statements of the Bank prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP and PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong
Kong has audited the financial statements of the Bank prepared in accordance with IFRS, and has
issued unqualified audit reports. The Audit Committee has discussed matters such as accounting
standards and practices adopted in the financial statements, internal control and the financial
statements.
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(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated.)

9.1 Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated Income Statements,

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, and Consolidated Cash

Flow Statements

9.1.1 Balance Sheet

Bank of China Group
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Bank of China Limited

Assets 2006 2005 2006 2005
Cash 31,110 28,644 27,632 25,144
Precious metals 42,873 30,314 41,332 28,577
Due from central banks 379,631 316,941 354,881 284,373
Government certificates of indebtedness

for bank notes issued 36,626 35,586 1,713 1,641
Trading and other debt securities at fair

value through profit or loss 110,634 107,271 76,581 82,082
Derivative financial instruments 24,837 16,808 16,363 11,329
Due from and placements with banks

and other financial institutions 407,340 344,537 313,212 256,786
Debt securities 1,768,784 1,562,320 1,452,030 1,297,990
Loans and advances to customers 2,431,806 2,235,046 2,064,614 1,868,105
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (94,293) (83,153) (92,962) (79,581)
Interest receivable 24,306 20,408 20,035 16,107
Equity investments 18,280 15,393 70,969 66,951
Fixed assets 91,808 72,978 52,650 53,392
Construction in progress 6,585 3,342 4,630 3,331
Deferred income tax assets 17,605 17,561 17,492 17,428
Other assets 26,841 18,810 9,801 10.384
Total assets 5,325,273 4,742,806 4,430,973 3,944,039
Liabilities
Due to central banks 42,374 30,055 42,349 30,030
Bank notes in circulation 36,823 35,731 1,909 1,786
Derivative financial instruments and

liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss 113,048 91,174 91,084 76,323
Due to and placements from banks and

other financial institutions 321,381 345,233 309,667 343,574
Deposits from customers 4,095,422 3,703,777 3,359,870 3,009,187
Interest payable 33,834 27,024 31,747 25,291
Other borrowings 63,398 52,164 46,006 52,164
Bonds issued 60,173 60,179 60,173 60,179
Deferred income 1ax liabilities 1,104 184 30 22
Other liabilities 139,902 134,665 99,668 111,641
Total liabilities 4,907,459 4,480,186 4,042,503 3,710,197
Minority interests 29,560 28,778 — —
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Assets
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Capital reserve

Surplus reserve

General reserve and regulatory reserve

Undistributed profits

Reserve for fair value changes of
available-for-sale securities

Currency translation differences

Treasury shares

Total Shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and Shareholders’
equity
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31 December 31 December 31 December

AL W RS ASERRLAL RS

31 December

2006 2005 2006 2005
253,839 209,427 253,839 209,427
76,549 3,978 75,889 3,978
10,380 5,987 10,380 5,987
13,934 5,109 13,934 5,109
39,884 12,585 40,528 12,585
(2,439) (1,380) (2,439) (1,380)
(3,677) (1,864) (3,661) (1,864)
(216) — — _
388,254 233,842 388,470 233,842
5,325,273 4,742,806 4,430,973 3,944,039
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Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading (losses)/gains
Investment gains/(losses)

Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses
Business tax and surcharges

Operating profit
Non-operating income, net

Profit before impairment losses
Impairment losses

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit after tax
Minority interests

Net profit

Bank of China

Bank of China

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Bank during the year (expressed in

Renminbi per ordinary share)
— Basic
— Diluted

Group Limited
2006 2005 2006 2005
214,670 167,345 172,997 138,739
(93,963) (66,940) (69,419) _(53,500)
120,707 100,405 103,578 85,239
14,323 9,247 9,760 6,220
(3,779) 4,482 (3,792) 2,642
3,831 (248) 12,899 10,167
2,546 2,142 1,868 692
137,628 116,028 124,313 104,960
(53,614) (45,604) (44,923) (38,518)
(6,462}  (5.,680) (6,388) _ (5,604)
77,552 64,744 73,002 60,838
1,044 1,381 109 723
78,596 66,125 73,111 61,561
(11,587) _(10,985)  (13,812) _ (14,250)
67,009 55,140 59,299 47,311
(19.857) (22,543) (16,802} (19,819)
47,152 32,597 42,497 27,492
(5,260)  (5,105) — —
41,892 27,492 42,497 27,492
0.18 0.15
0.18 0.15
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Bank of China Group
Reserve for

fair value
General changes of
reserve and available- Currency
Share Capital Surplus regulatory Undistributed for-sale translation Treasury
capital reserve reserve reserve profits  securities differences shares Total
At 1 January 2006 209,427 3,978 5,987 5.109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) — 233,842
Net profit —_ — — - 41,892 — — — 41,892
Issue of ordinary shares 44,412 72,567 — —_ —_ —_ — — 116,979
Appropriation — — 4,393 8,828 (13,221) —_ —_ —_ _
Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities — — — — — (1,059) — —  (1,059)
Dividends — — —_ —_ (1,375) — — — (1,375)
Currency translation
differences — — —_ —_ — — (1,813) —  (1,813)
Purchase of treasury shares — — —_ —_ —_ — — (216} (216)
QOthers — 4 — (3) 3 — — — 4
At 31 December 2006 253,839 76,549 10,380 13,934 39,884 (2,439 (3,677) (216) 388,254
Bank of China Limited
Reserve for
fair value
General changes of
reserve and available- Currency
Share Capital Surplus regulatory Undistributed for-sale translation
capital reserve reserve reserve profits  securities differences Total
At 1 January 2006 209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842
Net profit — — — — 42,497 — — 42,497
Issue of ordinary shares 44,412 72,219 — — — — — 116,631
Appropriation — — 4,393 8,828 (13,221) — — —
Net change in fair value of available-for-
sale securities — — — —_ —_ (1,059) — (1,059)
Dividends — — —_ —_ (1,375) — — (1,375)
Currency translation differences — — —_ _— —_ —_ (1,797) (1,797
Others — (308) — (3) 42 — — (269)
At 31 December 2006 253,839 75,889 10,380 13,934 40,528 (2,439) (3.661) 388,470

9.1.4 Cash Flow Statements

Bank of China Bank of China

Group Limited
Cash flow from operating activities
Interest received 203,494 162,085
Commission received 16,872 10,779
Proceeds from recovery of bad debts previously written off 3,589 1,201
Net increase in deposits from customers 391,645 350,683
Net decrease in due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions 5,266 9,966
Net increase in due to central banks 12,319 12,319
Net change in other operating items 12,442 3,858
Cash inflow from operating activities 645,627 550,891
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Payment of interest on customer deposits and inter-bank balances

Commission paid

Payment to and on behalf of the employees

Payment of operating expenses and others

Income tax paid

Business and other taxes paid

Net increase in loans and advances to customers

Net increase in debt securities

Net increase in due from central banks

Net increase in precious metal

Net decrease in due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Net decrease in special purpose borrowings

Cash outflow from operating activities
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other assets
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments
Dividends received

Cash inflow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets and other assets
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Increase of equity investments

Cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares

Proceeds from minority shareholders of a subsidiary upon exercise
of subsidiaries share option

Proceeds from minority shareholders of subsidiaries

Cash inflow from financing activities

Payment of interest on bonds issued

Dividend payments to shareholders of the Bank

Dividend payments to minority shareholders

Purchase of treasury shares

Payment of share issurance costs
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Group Limited
(84,379) (60,189)
(2,816) (1,027)
(27,399) (22,845)
(17,564) (15,343)
(25,536) (22,948)
(6,955} (6,885)
(200,349) (197,710)
(141,089) (88,235)
(69,063) (75,634)
(12,559) (12,755)
(23,852) (33,907)
(6,158) (6,158)
(617,719) (543.636)
27,908 7,255
4,841 3,948
3,078 1,095
201 7,192
8,120 12,235
(7,425) (6,214)
(5,373) —
(1,635) (579)
(14,433) (6,793)
(6,313) 5,442
117,423 116,767
33 —_—
55 —
117,511 116,767
(2,774) (2,774)
(1,375) (1,375)
(3,391) —
(216) —
(413) (413)
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Group Limited

Cash outflow from financing activities (8,169) (4,562)

Net cash inflow from financing activities 109,342 112,205

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents (8,105) (3,483)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 122,832 121.419
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2006 397.112 275,623
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2006 519,944 397,042

9.2 Notes to Financial Statements

9.2.1 Net interest income

2006 2005

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 128,270 109,711
Debt securities 67,195 44,938
Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions 13,892 8,426
Due from central banks 5,313 4,270
Sub-total 214,670 167,345

Interest expense
Deposits from customers (79,939) (55,914)

Due to and placements from banks and other financial institutions, and due

to central banks (9,393) (6,512)
Other borrowings and bonds issued {4,631) (4,514)
Sub-total (93,963) (66,940)
Net interest income 120,707 100,405
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Other operating income
Insurance premium
Others'"

Sub-total

Other operating expense
Insurance claim expense
Others

Sub-total

Other operating income, net

2006 2005

7,708 5,237
2,623 1,380
10,331 6,617

(7,484)  (3,861)
(301 (614)

(7,785) (4,475)

2,546 2,142

(1)  Other operating income for the year ended 31 December 2006 included: (i) gains on disposal of debt to equity swap amounting o
RMB1,309 million, and (ii) gains of RMB660 million arising from disposal of certain loans by a subsidiary of the Group in Hong

Kong in March 2006.
9.2.3 Loans and advances to customers

(1) Analysed by security type

Loans and advances to customers are analysed by the form of security as follows:

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed leans
Collateralised and other secured loans

Total

(2) Analysed by industry sector

Corporate Loans
Manufacturing
Commercial and servicing
Energy, mining and agriculture
Real estate
Transportation and logistics
Public services
Financial services
Construction
Others

31 December

31 December

2006 2005
536,080 475,764
731,759 684,824

1,163,967 1,074,458
2,431,806 2,235,046

31 December
2006

602,865
301,254
260,706
217,960
211,786
106,141
72,909
38,897
36,544

31 December
2005

531,191
301,863
230,854
190,297
193,428
91,924
96,245
36,050
40,191




Sub-total

Consumer loans
Mortgages loans
Vehicle loans
Credit card and others

Sub-total

Total

(3) Accrual and non-accrual loans

Accrual loans
Non-accrual loans

Total

J1 pecemper 51 becember

2006 2005
1,849,062 1,712,043
456,930 413,007
26,315 28,005
99,499 81,991
582,744 523,003
2,431,806 2,235,046

31 December 31 December

2006 2005
2,354,814 2,158,232
76,992 76,814
2,431,806 2,235,046

(4) As at 31 December 2006, there were no bills pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements (2005

RMB11,968 million).

924 Income tax

Current income tax
Chinese Mainland income tax
Hong Kong, Macao and other overseas income tax

Deferred tax

Total

20006 2005
16,477 18,536
3,287 2,755
19,764 21,291
93 1,252
19,857 22,543

The provision for Chinese Mainland income tax includes the supplementary PRC tax on income

derived from the Group’s Overseas Operations.
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basic domestic tax rate of the Bank as follows:

2006 2005
Profit before income tax 67,009 55,140
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 33% 22,113 18,196
Effect of different tax rates in Overseas Operations (3,796) (3,445)
Supplementary tax on overseas income paid in the PRC 2,510 1,388
Income not subject to tax‘? , (2,352) (1,803)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes® 1,137 4,789
Prior years tax expenses adjustmentm (300) 2,376
Others™ 545 1.042
Total 19,857 22,543

(1) Tt mainly comprised the interest income from the PRC treasury bills.

(2) Non tax-deductible expenses primarily comprised staff salary costs in excess of the deduction limit permitted under relevant PRC
tax regulations.

According to Caishui [2007] No. 40, “Notice to Bank of China Limited on the Deductible Criterion relating to Salary Expenses”
issued by MOF and the State Administration of Taxation, the deductible salary expenses approved for the Domestic Gperations in
2006 were RMB15.669 million when determining the Bank's 2006 taxable income. As the approved amounts of deductible salary
expenses were higher than the deduction limit originally applicable 1o the Bank, the Bank’s tax expenses were reduced by
RMB4,626 million.

(3) The prior year tax expense adjustments for the year 2005 includes RMB1,921 million related to the reversal in 2004 of certain
provisions recorded in prior years. Such reversals were non-taxable.

(4)  Others primarily included non-performing leans sold. The deferred income tax assets arising from the associated loan loss
provisions were subsequently de-recognised.

9.2.5 Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted)

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 have been
computed by dividing the profit for each year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at 31 December 2006 and 2005, and therefore
the diluted earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per share.

2006 2005
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 41,892 27,492
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in millions) 236,055 186,425
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in RMB) 0.18 0.15

9.2.6 Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into the following foreign currency exchange rate or interest rate related derivative
financial instruments for trading, asset and liability management and on behalf of customers.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a future date.
Foreign currency and interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or buy or sell a foreign currency or interest rate
financial instrument on a future date at an agreed price in the financial market under the
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futures that call for a cash settlement at a future date for the difference between a contracted rate of
interest and the current market rate, based on a notional principal amount.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another.
Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or
a combination of all these (i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swaps
contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency and interest rate options are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer)
grants the purchaser (holder) the right , but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a
put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency or a
financial instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange
or interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options may be either
negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC”) between the Group and its counterparty or exchange-traded.

The contractual/notional amount and fair values of derivative instruments held by the Group are set
out in the following table. The contractual/notional amounts of financial instruments provide a basis
for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market foreign
exchange rate, market interest rates or equity/commodity prices relative to their terms. The aggregate
fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The fair values of derivatives that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data, such as interest rate and foreign currency exchange
rates, however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty’s), volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in such observable data and assumptions about these
factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
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At 31 December 2006
Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps‘"

Currency options purchased(z)
Currency options written

Sub-total

Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Interest rate options purchased

Interest rate options written
Interest rate futures

Sub-total
Equity derivatives
Prectous metal derivatives

Total derivative financial instruments assets/(liabilities)

At 31 December 2005
Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps‘"

Currency options purchased®
Currency options written

Sub-total

Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Interest rate options purchased
Interest rate options written
Interest rate futures

Sub-total
Equity derivatives
Precious metal derivatives

Total derivative financial instruments assets/(liabilities)
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notional amount

993,008
187,446
38,272

369,093
34,793
41,151
48,939
14,675

10,572

10,520

Contractual/
notional amount

563,397
176,643
19,369

361,332
39,427
11,584
98,994
14,939

15,442

21,008

Assets Liabilities
11,860 (4,974)
5,735 _—

— (419)
17,595 (5,393)
4,236 (4,832)
1,532 (2,932)
592 —_
_ (161)
30 (9
6,400 (7,934)
453 (390)
389 {606)
24,837 (14,323)
Fair values
Assets Liabilities
6,991 4,813)
3,781 —
— (374
10,772 (5,187)
3,132 (5,246)
1,735 4,131
148 —
— (215
28 (34)
5.043 (9.626)
14 (7)
979 (932)
16.808 (15,752)




LARARL RO AR IS, LI DDA Sl Vo 1O THC DdllK 1 PO Halsacllons 1Oor Rvlild and agrecd 10 buy DACK the Us L2 ailer one
year or three years at agreed exchange rates and swap rates. which reflect the intcrest rate differentials between USD and RMB at
the respective inception date of the transactions.

(2)  On 5 January 2005, the Bank entered into a forcign currency option agreement with Huijin to economically hedge a portion of its
net on-balance sheet foreign currency position. where by the Bank acquired options to sell to Huijin USD, totalling USD18 billion
(RMB 140,557 million). of no more than USD1.500 million at the beginning of each calendar month during the year ending 31
December 2007 at a fixed exchange rate of USD1 to RMB8.2769. The related option premium of RMB4.469 million, is payable
by the Bank to Huijin in 12 equal monthly instalments at the beginning of each calendar month during the year ending 31
December 2007. As at 31 December 2006, the fair value of these contracts amounted to RMB5.18 billien (2005: RMB3.23
billion),

9.3 Notes to the Bank’s major financial items

9.3.1 Loans and advances to customers

31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Unsecured loans | 469,084 401,756
Guaranteed loans 652,766 617,332
Collateralised and other secured loans 942,764 349,017
Total 2,064,614 1,868,105
9.3.2 Net interest income

2006 2005

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 107,267 94,464
Debt securities 52,483 34,994
Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions 8,517 5,136
Due from central banks 4,730 4,145
Sub-total 172,997 138,739

Interest expense
Deposits from customers (55,546) (42,384

Due to and placements from banks and other financial institutions, due to

central banks ‘ (9,242) (6,602)
Other borrowings and bonds issued (4,631) {(4,514)
Sub-total (69.419)  (53,500)
Net interest income 103,578 85,239

9.4 Contingent liabilities, commitments and other off-balance sheet items
9.4.1 Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2006, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits as defendants arising from its
normal business operations. Management of the Group believes that the outcome of these lawsuits will
not have a material impact on the financial position of the Group after consulting legal counsel.
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Assets pledged as collateral for repurchase, short positions and precious metals swaps agreements with
other banks and financial institutions are set forth in the tables below. As at 31 December 2006, the
Group had repurchase agreements, short positions and precious metals swaps amounting to
RMB54,806 million (2005: RMB62,108 million). All such agreements mature within twelve
months from inception.

31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Precious metals — 2,617
Biils — 11,968
Debt securities 55,212 49 658
Total 55,212 64,243

9.4,3 Capital commitments

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the accounts:

31 December 3] December

2006 2005

Authorised and contracted for but not recorded 38,741 1,893
Authorised but not contracted for 1,536 2,687
40,277 4,580

The above capital commitments are related to commitments to purchase building and equipment
(including the purchasing aircraft for operating lease purpose). The Group’s management is confident
that future revenues and funding available will be sufficient to meet these capital commitments.
However the Group’s management have no obligation to incur the costs in respect of the amount
reported as authorised but not contracted for.

9.4.4 Operating leases

According to the irrevocable operating lease contracts, the minimum rental payments that should be
paid in the future are summarised as:

31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Within one year
One to two years 1,604 1,371
Two to three years 1,281 1,085
Above three years 969 807
2,832 2,546
Total 6,686 5,809
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The Bank is entrusted by the MOF to issue certain Certificate Treasury Bonds. The investors of
Certificate Treasury Bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at par any time prior to maturity and the
Bank is committed to redeem those bonds. The redemption price is the principal value of the
Certificate Treasury Bonds plus unpaid interest in accordance with the early redemption arrangement.
As at 31 December 2006, the Bank’s redemption commitments, representing the principal value of the
bonds underwritten and sold by the Bank, amounted to RMB84,500 million {2005: RMBS80,965
million). The original maturities of these bonds vary from 1 to 5 years. As the deposits base rate
established by the PBOC is currently lower than the yields on all issues of Certificate Treasury Bonds,
management expects the amount of redemption before the maturity dates of those bonds through the
Bank will not be material.

9.4.6 Major off-balance sheet exposures

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

Acceptances
Letters of guarantee issued 217,093 195,234
Letters of credit issued 290,205 212,987
Irrevocable credit commitments and others 109,083 101,195
471,441 386,346
Total 1,087,822 895,762

9.4.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, entrusted loan administration, trustee and investment management
services to third parties. Assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements. As at 31 December 2006, the Group had a balance of securities and other financial
instruments held in custody accounts amounted to approximately RMB707,953 million (2005:
RMB562,823million), entrusted loans of RMB98,046 million (2005: RMB51,626 million), and the
balance of precious metals held in custody accounts amounted to approximately RMB3,150 million
(2005: RMB2,696 million).

§10 The accounting policies and basis of presentation of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2006 are consistent with those adopted in the 2005 annual financial statements.

Effective 1 January 2007, the Group adopts the *“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”
(*“2006 New CAS”) issued by the Ministry of Finance. The Group has performed a preliminary
assessment and considered that the adoption of the 2006 New CAS will not result in any material
effects on the Group’s results of operations.

Bank of China Limited
Chairman:
Xiao Gang
March 22, 2007
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Stock Code: 601988 Bank of China No.:2007—003

Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of Directors of
Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Lid and all members of Board of Directors warrant that the information
disclosed is authentic, accurate and complete, and contains no false representations,

misleading statements or material omissions.

The notice of the meeting of the Board of Directors of Bank of
China Ltd (“Bank of China” or the “Bank™) held on Mar 22, 2007 had
been sent to all of the Directors and Supervisors on Mar 8, 2007 by
means of paper documents and email and the meeting was convened on
Mar 22, 2007 in Hong Kong. Mr. Li Zaohang attended the meeting by
means of video conference. Number of directors bound to be present is 16
and all of them attended the meeting in person, in compliance with the
provisions of the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the
Bank. Non-voting attendees to the meeting included members of the
Board of Supervisors and the Senior Management. Mr. Xiao Gang,
Chairman of the Board, presided over the meeting. The following
resolutions were discussed one by one and adopted by signed paper
ballots by Directors present:

1. Proposal on the 2006 Annual Report of Bank of China Limited
Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

2. Proposal on the Bank of China Limited Profit Distribution Plan
for the year 2006

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

It was resolved that the dividends distribution of




RMB10,153,566,480.36, at RMB 0.04 per share (before tax) be and are
hereby approved.

3. Proposal on the Annual Budget of Bank of China Limited for the
Year 2007

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

4. Proposal on the Appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
External Auditor of Bank of China Limited for the Year 2007

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

The proposal on the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
external auditor of the Bank for the year 2007 at the fee of USD 20.1
million was approved.

5. Proposal on the Appointment of Mr. Huang Shizhong as
Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
appointment of Mr. Huang Shizhong as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank as follows: Agree

Huang Shizhong, 45, currently serves as vice president of Xiamen
National Accounting Institute. Mr. Huang graduated in 1986 from
Dalhousie University with a MBA degree, and received his Ph.D degree
of Economics (with accounting focus) in 1993 from Xiamen University.
He has served successfully as managing partner of Pan-China Xiamen
CPA firm, deputy dean of the management school of Xiamen University.
Mr. Huang also serves as a member of the Education Steering Committee
of the National Master Program of Professional Accounting, adviser to
the Accounting Standards Committee of the Ministry of Finance, member
of standing committee of the Chinese Accounting Association, member of
the Auditing Standards Committee of the CICPA. He serves as
independent non-executive director in Xiamen International Airport
Group Co., Ltd., Xiamen International Port Co., Ltd. (listed in the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd) , Xiamen C & D Inc., Xiamen Tungsten
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Co., Ltd.

6. Proposal on the Appointment of Ms. Huang Danhan as
Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 14 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:2

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
appointment of Ms. Huang Danhan as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank as follows: Agree:2, Against:0,Abstention:2 (Lacks
banking operation experience)

Huang Danhan, 57, currently serves as Senior Advisor of EU-China
Trade Project in trade in services, a Partner of Sinobridge PRC Lawyers.
Ms. Huang graduated from Robert Schuman University of Strasbourg,
France with a State Doctor’s degree in Law in 1987, being the first PRC
scholar who received such degree in France in the field of social sciences.
Since returning to China, Ms. Huang has served successively as
government official in MOFTEC (now Ministry of Commerce),
university professor, private practice lawyer and Chief Legal Officer for
some major Chinese state-owned trading company and financial
institutions, including General Manager of Legal Department, China
Construction Bank (August 1999- March 2001), and General Counsel,
China Galaxy Securities Company Limited (March 2001-September
2004). She also served as a member of the First Session of the Public
Offering Examination and Approval Commission under the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (1993-1995). Starting from January
2007, she has been serving as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Beijing ZJS Express, Co. Ltd.

7. Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Anthony Francis Neoh as
Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Anthony Francis Neoh did not
exercise voting right on such proposal.

Other Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
re-appointment of Mr. Anthony Francis Neoh as Independent
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Non-executive Director of the Bank as follows: Agree

8. Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Xiao Gang as Executive
Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Xiao Gang did not exercise voting
right on such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
re-appointment of Mr. Xiao Gang as Executive Director of the Bank as
follows: Agree

9. Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Li Lihui as Executive
Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Li Lihui did not exercise voting right
on such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
re-appointment of Mr. Li Lihui as Executive Director of the Bank as
follows: Agree

10.  Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Hua Qingshan as
Executive Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Hua Qingshan did not exercise voting
right on such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
re-appointment of Mr. Hua Qingshan as Executive Director of the Bank
as follows: Agree

11.  Proposal on the Re-appointment of Mr. Li Zaohang as
Executive Director of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Li Zaohang did not exercise voting
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right on such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
re-appointment of Mr. Li Zaohang as Executive Director of the Bank as
follows: Agree

Please make reference to the resumes of the Directors proposed to be
re-appointed in the 2006 Annual Report of Bank of China Limited.

12.  Proposal on the Management Measures on Remuneration of
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited
(“Management Measures™)

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Chairman Xiao Gang did not exercise
voting right on such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the
Management Measures as follows: Agree

13. Proposal on the Remuneration Scheme for the Independent
Non-executive Directors of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 12 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, the four Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Bank did not exercise voting right on such proposal.

14.  Proposal on the Bonus Distribution Scheme for the Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited for the year 2006

Votes For: 15 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Due to conflict of interest, Chairman Xiao Gang did not exercise
voting right on such proposal.

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the Bonus
Distribution Scheme for the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Bank as follows: Agree

15. Proposal on the Amendments to the Articles of Association of
Bank of China Limited




Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

16. Proposal on the Amendments to the Bank of China Limited
Board of Directors’ Procedural Rules

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

17.  Proposal on the Amendments to the Bank of China Limited
Procedural Rules for Shareholders’ Meeting

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

18. Proposal on the appointment of Mr. Luo Nan as Listing Affairs
Representative of Bank of China Limited

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

Luo Nan, 34, full-time Master’s degree (Rotman School of
Management, University of Toronto). Mr. Luo joined Bank of China in
July 1996, and once served as an intern in Luoyang Branch, and a staff
member of the Overseas Business Management Department. He started to
work in the Office of Restructuring and Listing of Bank of China from
August 2004 and was appointed to be the senior manager (Investor
Relations) of the Board Secretariat in April 2005 and was appointed to be
Division Head (Investor Relations) of the Board Secretariat in October
2006. Mr. Luo has obtained the Qualification Certificate of Board
Secretary issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Proposals 1 to 17 will be submitted for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting of 2006. The detailed information of such
proposals will be disclosed on the website of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) and the website of the Bank (www.boc.cn)
when the Notice of the Annual General Meeting is announced.

In addition, the appointment of Mr. Wai Kin Chim as Chief Credit
Officer of the Bank has been approved by competent regulatory
authorities. The Bank hereby announces the relative resolution approving




the proposal to appoint Mr. Wai Kin Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the
Bank as follows:

Proposal to appoint Mr. Wai Kin Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the
Bank

Votes For: 16 Votes Against: 0 AbstentionVotes: 0

Independent Non-executive Directors commented on the appointment of
Mr. Wai Kin Chim as Chief Credit Officer of the Bank as follows: Agree
Mr. Wai Kin Chim, 46, holds British Citizenship and is a Hong Kong
permanent resident. Prior to joining the Bank, he worked in Standard
Chartered Bank, Hong Kong, Bankers Trust Company, Hong Kong and
Deutsche Bank. When working with Deutsche Bank, Mr. Chim served as
the Managing Director and Chief Credit Officer — Non Japan Asia. Mr.
Chim has been working in banking credit and risk management areas for

more than 20 years and possesses ample experiences in risk management,

The announcement is hereby notified.

Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited

March 23, 2007




Stock Code: 601988 Bank of China No.: 2007—002

Announcement Regarding Resolutions of the Board of Supervisors
of Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Ltd. and all members of Board of Supervisors warrant that the
information disclosed is authentic, accurate and complete, and contains no false

representations, misleading statements or material omissions.

The 2nd meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Bank of China Ltd. (“Bank of
China” or the “Bank™) for the year of 2007 was convened in the 14th floor conference
room of the Bank of China Hong Kong Building on March 22, 2007. Number of
supervisors bound to be present is 5 and all of them attended the meeting in person.

The meeting is legal and valid.

The 2006 annual report of Bank of China and its summary which were approved
by the Board of Directors of the Bank on March 22, 2007, were reviewed and
approved by the meeting of Board of Supervisors. And Bank of China Profit
Distribution Plan for the year 2006 which was approved by the Board of Directors on
March 22,2007, was reviewed and approved by the meeting of Board of Supervisors.
The report of the Board of Supervisors to be submitted to the Annual General Meeting
for sharcholders’ approval was reviewed and approved by the meeting of Board of

Supervisors.
The results of the voting are as follows:
1. The 2006 annual report of Bank of China and its summary:
Votes For: 5 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0
2. Bank of China Profit Distribution Plan for the year 2006:
Votes For: 5 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:(

3. The report of the Board of Supervisors to be submitted to the Annual General

Meeting:




Votes For: 5 Votes Against: 0 Abstention Votes:0

The announcement is hereby notified.

Board of Supervisors of Bank of China Limited

March 23, 2007




